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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a high investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, makes no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole
or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software (Group)
Limited (the “Company”) (the “Directors”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the“Board”) of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (the“Company”), | am pleased to present
the audited financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the“Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overall Business of the Group in 2020

Despite China’s economic recovery, all industries and sectors
have been severely affected as the global financial crisis continues
to unfold in 2020. Since banks were forced to suspend their
operations or postpone their plans for three to even six months
except for the essential services, the Group’s growth over the
past five years was entirely wiped out. The substantial suspension
of banking operations, and the further disruptions caused by the
continuing cluster outbreaks in Heilongjiang, North China, Xinjiang
and Qingdao have severely undermined the Group’ development,
and its business is still intermittent when it is already delayed.
Therefore, the Group recorded a loss of RMB31,204,000 during
the year (a profit of approximately RMB25,004,000 for the year
of 2019) as the revenue for the year dropped by 34% compared
with the same period last year while cost of sales and total
expenses rose by 12%. Despite the extremely disappointing
performance, the Group was able to maintain its finance through
the challenging times by leveraging the strong record of payment
collection in previous years, and by making further progress in the
development of the strategy that focuses on a core business and
two complementary products in line with the overall strategy.

As the demand plunged drastically due to the suspension or
closing down of branches, shopping malls and stores during
the pandemic, and most of the banking services were delivered
via mobile app, the Group’s “Payment plus Service” department
shifted its development focus online. Apart from launching
the WeChat Pay and CCB payment channels, cloud-based
MIS(payment software) was also introduced to adapt to the
increasingly diversified models. Meanwhile, the Group also moved
the subject of the payment process from offline to online to make
it gradually complete the fusion, such as working with banks and
third parties to deepen the overall process development.

Due to the epidemic, it gives many small and medium-sized
banks a good opportunity to develop mobile banking and
payment process. Meanwhile, it reminds the Group that relevant
businesses must be developed to small and medium-sized banks
in 2021.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBEE
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBEE

The expansion of offline market and targeted development of
merchant service business, thus, the bank outsourcing services
has become one of the main development targets of the Group.
Previously only served 2 provincial bank branches six years ago,
the Group has served 15 provinces this year, including major
economic provinces such as Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Guangdong,
Sichuan, etc., there are also provinces with policy advantages
such as Northwest and Xinjiang. Due to the impact of the
epidemic, the original offline promotion model gradually transferred
to online and offline integration. The Group will further conduct the
merchants-oriented operating project on a basis of “deepening
the value-added services and strengthening cooperation with
banks”, and gradually consolidate its originally separated
businesses in strategic development, so that banking outsourcing
service and payment products are integrated to form a business
portfolio, which will become the core of future development.

Singlee has developed for nearly 30 years in China’s payment
field and has witnessed the changes in China’s financial payment
industry. The digital currency pilot led by the People’s Bank
of China has been introduced to the market in 2020, and just
like the Greater Bay Area representing the second wave of the
domestic reform, digital currency is the second wave of financial
currency reform, which will bring the Group good opportunities
for development in the payment field. In view of the above, the
Board of Directors decided to sell the unpromising capital product
business that has not brought relatively profits to the Group in
the past few years, the proceeds from which will be used for the
overall development of payment and service outsourcing- the
strategy that focuses on a core business and two complementary
products.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Payment + Outsourcing Services are still the core of Singlee, and
the Merchants and Bank-School Platform evolved from traditional
operations remain our main sources of big data. On this basis, the
Group will form a new OFFLINE TO ONLINE (020) model with its
own characteristics, and will also extend the collaborative model
with banks to commercial banks at all levels. Meanwhile, the
development of mixed business portfolio will be better aligned to
the overall requirements of the financial environment.

The Group will continue to implement stringent cost control and
strengthen the risk control in the overall and various businesses
S0 as to achieve a sound cycle of “broadening sources of income
and reducing expenses”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of
information and network technologies and services to the financial
industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Revenue of the Group comprises of:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (“the financial year”), the
Group recorded a total revenue of approximately RMB85,535,000,
a decrease of 34% as compared to the year ended 31 December
2019 (2019: approximately RMB129,675,000,).

g e
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Revenue
= -0

2020 2019
—E-SHE —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Sales of software products SHEBHE R 6,320 15,484
Sales of related hardware products SHERBEEHER 2,065 8,723
Provision of technical support services {11l =% 2 IR 75 77,150 105,468
85,535 129,675

The decrease in the turnover of the Group was mainly attributable
to the decrease of 27% in the revenue of the Group’s provision of
technical support services when compared to the same period of
last year. The total revenue for the year 2020 mainly came from
the provision of technical support services. The source of total
revenue for the year 2020 was the same as that for the year of
2019.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2020 is increased
by 6% to approximately RMB78,776,000 (2019: approximately
RMB74,622,000). Cost of sales increased was mainly attributable
to increase in staff cost. Gross profit margin was 8% (2019: 42%,.
The decrease of gross profit margin significantly was mainly due
to decrease sharply in revenue from higher gross profit services
provided and increase in direct staff cost.
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Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
is increased by 9% to approximately RMB15,797,000 (2019:
approximately RMB14,483,000). The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to increase in staff cost.
Distribution and selling expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 is approximately RMB12,037,000 (2019: approximately
RMB12,488,000). Not much movement when compared to
the same period of last year. Other income mainly included
Government grants and interest income; and other gains and
losses mainly included exchange differences, loss from waiver of
trade receivable and fair value changes in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

Research and development costs expensed for the year ended
31 December 2020 is increased by 439% to approximately
RMB9,388,000 (2019: approximately RMB1,742,000), mainly
attributable to all costs incurred was expensed during the year.
In 2019, the capitalised development costs was approximately
RMB9,903,000.

Loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 is approximately
RMB31,204,000 (2019: profit approximately RMB25,004,000).
The turnaround from profit to loss was mainly attributable to a
significant decrease in revenue due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was established in
Hangzhou, PRC, is regarded as a High and New Technology
Enterprise and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential tax rate
for PRC enterprise income tax. According to the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax Law, the applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee
Software Company Limited ("Singlee Software") and Xin Yintong
Technology Co., Ltd. ("Xin YinTong") is 25% for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly the Group’s
owned properties, leasehold improvements, computer and related
equipment and motor vehicles. Not much movement when
compared to the same period of last year.

Intangible assets comprise mainly the Group’s capitalised
development costs. Decrease of 25% is mainly attributable to
no captialisation of development costs during the year. (2019:
approximately RMB9,903,000)

D ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DM

Trade receivables and contract assets decreased in line with
business activities during the year. During the year under review,
the trade receivables and contract assets turnover (the average
of the trade receivables balance and contract assets at the
beginning and the end of the year divided by the total revenue of
the year times 365 days) increased by 81 days to 283 days (2019:
202 days). The Group’s customers are generally granted with
credit period ranging from 120-180 days. The Group will continue
to exercise due care in managing the credit exposure.

Borrowings amounted to approximately RMB63,789,000 as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: approximately RMB68,471,000),
representing a decrease of 7%, which is mainly attributable to the
repayment of unsecured director’s loans. The borrowings would
be used for general corporate purposes including working capital.

We will continue striving our best to increase sales and strengthen
our cost control measures. With the products of our Group
becoming more mature in the market and the effective cost
control, we expect that financial results of the Group would be
improved in the coming year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group incurred capital expenditure of approximately
RMB750,000 (2019: approximately RMB10,193,000) during
the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly attributable to no
additions in intangible assets developed internally.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO

The operating expenditures of the Group are funded by cash
flow from operations and borrowings. The Group has adequate
sources of funds to meet its future working capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK dollars,
amounted to approximately RMB58,358,000 (2019: approximately
RMB76,170,000). The decrease on bank balances and cash was
mainly due to decrease in collection of receivables. The Group’s
current ratio, based on total current assets over total current
liabilities, as at 31 December 2020 was approximately 3 times
(2019: approximately 5 times).
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The Group’s net cash outflow for the year ended 31 December
2020 approximately amounted to RMB17,812,000 (2019: net
cash inflow approximately RMB30,522,000).

At 31 December 2020, the Group had the following outstanding
borrowings:

BEZE-_EF+_A=1+—RILEE  x&£H
HEmE FEAOBARK17,812,0000(ZF— A,
FBERANFEHARES0,522,0007T) °

RZB-ZF+-_A=1—0  AEEKREER
B

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEEE:

Unsecured loans from a director mIKHESEE 44,789 57,471
Secured bank borrowings BEHETEE 15,000 11,000
Unsecured bank borrowings EIERIRITEE 4,000 —
63,789 68,471

The borrowings’ contractual maturity dates are as follows: BEEHIISMANT -
2020 2019
—E-THF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETTT
Within one year 1ER 20,668 12,243
Between one to two years 12245 10,429 8,200
Between two to five years 2B54F 1,460 15,586
More than five years 5FE % 31,232 32,442
63,789 68,471

The loans from a director of approximately RMB43,854,000
(2019: RMB52,158,000) are denominated in HK dollars, other
borrowings are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entity.

During the year 2020, the Group entered into two revolving loan
facility agreements with a bank with a total credit amounts of
RMB15,000,000. The maturity date of the two revolving loan
facilities is on 6 July 2025 and 22 July 2025 respectively. These
two revolving loan facilities were fully utilised as at 31 December
2020.

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year (2019:
nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmR DM

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over total
assets, as at 31 December 2020 was approximately 57% (2019:
approximately 50%). The Group has confident that gearing ratio
can improve in the coming year.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

The Company completed a rights issue on 21 May 2019, pursuant
to which the Company has issued 439,080,000 ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.01 each as rights shares at HK$0.06
per rights share on the basis of two rights shares for every one
existing share held on 24 April 2019. The net proceeds from the
rights issue (after deducting the expenses) were approximately
HK$24,420,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB21,564,000).
The Company intended to apply net proceeds for general working
capital of the Group.

The analysis of the planned and actual uses of the net proceeds
from the rights issue as at 31 December 2020 is set out below:

R-Z-ZE+-A=+—8  FEEEGEAEL
(R AR EBERAAEEE) HAST% (—F
— N KI50%) - AEBERORK—FEES
L S

MRS RIEAR

ARBRZE—NERA-+—BERMER - Bt
ARABEBER -_ZE—NENA-_+NESEE K
RERMD BRI G 2 E%E - LSRR
% £70.067% 7T 2 1E{E8 3£ 17439,080,000/% & I H (&
0.01 BT 2 AN B EBRIEAHARRD, - HARATS
IR FRE (EHBRFAY &)%) /524,420,000 7T (49
HBENAREK21,564,0007T) o 2NN FlH8) AR
FEREFHEAEAERE —REBEES -

RIZB-ZF+-_RA=+—0  HRAEFEFE
MEtElRE R ERER BRI T -

Amount

Balance actually Balance

as at utilised during as at

Intended use 31 December the Reporting 31 December

of proceeds 2019 Period 2020

R=Z—-hF REEH R-ZB=-FTF

F8RE2 +t=A=+-—H WER +=A=+-H

BERR EER AL ER T ERIE

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BEETT BEET BEBT BEET

General working capital —fR&iEES 24.42 8.52 8.52 —
CAPITAL STRUCTURE RN

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 17,794,000 share
options were lapsed and expired. During the year ended 31
December 2019, 439,080,000 rights shares were allotted and
issued.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no other changes in
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types
of risk within the organisation and the external environment with
active management participation and effective internal control
procedures in the best interest of the Group and its shareholders.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue segmented on types of goods or services
delivered or provided:

a) Sales of software products
b) Sales of related hardware products
c) Provision of technical support services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, provision of technical
support services remained the principal source of revenue of the
Group. This services revenue accounted for 90% (2019: 81%) of
Group revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded
revenue from sales of software products, sales of related
hardware products and provision of technical support services
decrease of 59%, 76% and 27% respectively as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2019. Decrease in contracts is the main
factor leading to the revenue decreased.

Segment loss is approximately RMB31,152,000 (2019: profit
approximately RMB30,891,000).

Details of segment information are presented for the Group as
disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 965 employees
(2019: 850 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the year
amounted to approximately RMB74,334,000 (2019: approximately
RMB65,439,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmR DM

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which were
set out in the “Report of the Directors”.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties of the Group
located in Hangzhou with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB9,448,000 (2019: approximately
RMB9,992,000) were used to secure the banking facilities.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group'’s future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001 under
the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives” and
“Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds” respectively.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly transacted
in RMB. The Directors consider the impact of foreign exchange
exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2019: nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures and
awareness in our daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It implements
green office practices such as make use of water efficiently,
double-sided printing and copying, setting up recycling bins,
promoting using recycled paper and reducing energy consumption
by switching off idle lightings and electrical appliance. The Group
is also using office equipment carrying Energy Label issued by the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department which save energy
in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time to
time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses to move
towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce, Recycle and Reuse and
enhance environmental sustainability.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of the places in which the Group operates that which
has significant impact on the business operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. The Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises to
achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior management
have kept good communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them when appropriate. During the
year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its business partners or bank enterprises.

The Group collaborates with responsible suppliers to provide
quality goods with competitive pricing. To this end, the Group
implements policies on supply chain management to ensure
fair suppliers selection procedures. The suppliers should fulfill
the requirements in the supplier screening procedures and the
Group’s experienced employees ensure those goods received
from the suppliers meet the Group’s expectation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group'’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties
in addition to those shown below which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability
to meet business objectives arising from the movement in market
prices, like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices. The management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEERNWR DT

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities were denominated in Renminbi,
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) and United States dollars (“USD”), in
view of the potential HKD and USD exchange rate fluctuation the
Group undertake foreign exchange rate risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the
need arises.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, the Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and
considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when
appropriate, through variety of means.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to meet
its obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain
adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk,
the Group monitors cash flows and maintains an adequate level
of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the
Group’s operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. The management of the Group monitors the utilisation of

borrowings and ensures compliance with all the loan limits or
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.
Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. Our
management will identify and assess key operational exposures
regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence of
losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.
Key concern of investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
authorisation system has been set up and detailed analysis will
be made before approving investments. Regular updates on the
progress of the investments of the Group would be submitted to
the Board.
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Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain
key personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills,
experience and competence which would meet the business
objectives of the Group. The Group will provide attractive
remuneration package to suitable candidates and personnel.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group’s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions, performance of property markets in regions where our
investments locate, the performance of the fund managers for our
invested funds, which would not be mitigated even with careful
and prudent investment strategy and strict procedure.

Cyber Attack and Security Risk

The Group could be impacted negatively if it sustains cyberattacks
and other data security breaches that disrupt its operations or
damage its reputation. For example, various information and
sensitive or confidential data relating to its operations may be
subject to attack from hackers and other malicious software
programs that attempt to exploit any security vulnerability in its
system; Sophisticated software and applications that it produces
may contain “bugs” that could unexpectedly interfere with the
operation of the system or may present unidentified security
risk; Misappropriation of sensitive or confidential data about
its customers could lead the Group to loss of reputation, and
exposure to potential litigation and liability. The Group will continue
to enhance IT security and security information awareness and
comply with mandatory privacy and security standards and
protocols imposed by law, regulation, industry standards, or
contractual obligations.

Intellectual Property Risk

The Group could suffer if it does not develop and protect its
own intellectual property. The Group will take full advantage
of legal protections by applying for software copyright. For
licensed Intellectual Property, take appropriate steps to assure its
continued validity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1A
EEENmKkDW
PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS HERNAIS
Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” for a discussion on B #mBLRE FEREE [T ©
this.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE GROUP L EFEENTBEHE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
BE-E-EBF BE-T-NF BE-T-\F BE_T—+tF BE_T—F
+=A=+-8 +-A=+-8B +-BA=+-HB +-A=+—-H T-A=1+—H
LEE HFE HFE HFE HFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBEFTL ARETT AREFT ARBEFT
Revenue SHEMA 85,535 129,675 114,088 79,168 64,557
(Loss)/profit attributable to REEE(BE) /&R
shareholders (31,204) 25,004 22,203 15,798 7,028
Total assets BEHEE 151,196 192,474 152,558 107,905 75,030
Total liabilities aEeE (85,448) (95,522) (102,174) (82,555) (71,772)
Net assets BEFE 65,748 96,952 50,384 25,350 3,258
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 76, the Chairman of our Group and
the director of Strategic Development Committee. Mr. Hung,
who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of Music, is also
among the founders of the Group. He is in possession of more
than 30 years’ company management and strategy programming
experience and over 20 years’ successful experience in managing
high-tech companies; hence he is familiar with the China business
management and marketing planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge
of the Group’s macrostrategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 67, a Director of our Group. Mr. Cui is one
of the founders of Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd. and has
been working for our Group since its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui
is responsible for the investment programming of the Group.
Before joining the Group, he used to work for China Hangzhou
Automatization Research Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan
Computer Application Research Institute as director and president
of their Developing Departments.

Mr. Hung, Ying, aged 51, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. He had been the deputy general manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software
Co., Ltd of the Group from April 2007 to April 2011. Prior to
joining the Group, he had worked as the marketing director and
general manager in Beijing San Ding Ti Lian Network Technology
Company Limited from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Hung
graduated in information, social and management sciences
(majoring in business administration) from University of Paisley and
obtained an EMBA from Peking University. Mr. Hung has several
years of experiences in management, and is specialised in market
planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son of Mr. Hung Yung Lai, the
chairman and executive director of the Company.

Mr. Lin, Xue Xin, aged 45, a Director and Chief Executive
Officer of our Group. Mr. Lin has 20 years of experience in the
field of computer technology. He obtained his bachelor degree
of Computer Science and Technology from People ‘s Liberation
Army Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Lin joined the Group
since 2000 and was appointed as the general manager of
Hangzhou Singlee Technology Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company, in May 2011. Between 2010 and 2012, Mr. Lin was
also employed as a technology expert in UnionPay.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, JP, aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the company in December
2003. In the past years, he had been actively serving on
government policy committees and authorities, including those
relating to town planning, urban renewal, public housing and
environment matters. He has been appointed as a Justice of
the Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban
councilor. He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human
Settlements Planning and Development from the Asian Institute
of Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one
of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World in 1983. Mr.
Pao is a Hon. Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Housing. He
is an independent non-executive director of Oriental Press Group
Limited, Capital Environmental Holdings Limited, Zhuzhou CRRC
Times Electric Co., Ltd., Soundwill Holdings Limited and Maoye
International Holdings Limited, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Thomas Tam, aged 73, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1978 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.

Mr. Lo, King Man, JP,SBS,BBS, aged 83, an independent
non-executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career
in academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic in
1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong Academy
for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of Peace in Hong
Kong, and he has an extensive record of public service. He has
also served on the governing or executive bodies of numerous
educational and cultural organizations. He was appointed as
independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holding
Int’l Ltd. in September 2004.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGREEEBE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 41, is the Chief Financial Officer and
the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong is the member of
the Anxi County, Fujian Province Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Tong is the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations Limited, East
Kowloon. Mr. Tong is also the Council Member of Hong Kong
Fukien Chamber of Commerce, director of the Hong Kong Fujian
Chamber of Commerce Education Fund Co., Ltd., member of the
Youth Affairs Working Committee of China Star Light Charity Fund
Association, executive vice president of the Hong Kong Quarry
Bay Residents Association. Mr. Tong is also the Vice General
Secretary of the 5th Committee of Quanzhou Overseas Friendship
Association and director of the An Kwei Clans Association (H.K.)
Limited. He is the Vocational Training Council Accountancy
Training Board member, External Academic Advisor of Master of
Science in Professional Accounting and Corporate Governance in
City University of Hong Kong, External Advisor of the Department
of Accountancy and Law of Hong Kong Baptist University and
advisor of Business Association, Business and Economics
Association, the Hong Kong University Students’ Union. Mr. Tong
holds a Master of Business Administration Degree in Finance from
University of Southern Queensland. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified
Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tong is a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He joined
the Group in June 2007. He has accumulated over ten years of
accounting, auditing and corporate financing experiences. He is
now responsible for accounting, corporate financing and company
secretarial duties.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESHREE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the development and sale of
information and network technologies and services to the financial
industry in the PRC. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to the profit
from operation by principal activities and geographical area of
operations for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 77.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a fair review of the
business, a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year 2020,
an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
disclosures relating to the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and relationships with major stakeholders can be
found in the“Chairman’s Statement” and“Management Discussion
and Analysis” sections of this annual report. These discussions
form part of this directors’ report.

Throughout 2020, there was no incidence of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group’s business.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
18 May 2021 to 26 May 2021, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 26
May 2021 (the “AGM”). In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied by the relevant
share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 17 May 2021.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 18
of the annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 80 and page 188
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options scheme
are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders. At 31
December 2020, the company had no reserve available for
distribution to equity of the company (2019: nil).
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2020 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

27% (2019: 23%)
46% (2019: 38%)

Sales
— the largest customer
— five largest customers combined

48% (2019: 52%)
76% (2019: 74%)

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers stated above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, shareholders (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote on all
circumstances at general meeting of any other members of the
Group or substantial shareholders as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
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Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (=)

ARREREEIIIE T ZEER

Number of shares held

BRERGOEA
Capacity/ Long Short Percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding
MR AR B,/ ER 3y )3 BFERLESE
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 431,782,500 - 32.78%
EnEAA (note 1)
(HfzE1)
Great Song Enterprises Beneficial owner 431,782,500 - 32.78%
Limited ERBEEA (notes 1 and 2)
(PR3E1 %2)
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 431,782,500 - 32.78%
AERME S FERERE (notes 2 and 4)
GEZSD)
Beneficial owner 72,782,500 _ 5.53%
ERREA
Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 431,782,500 - 32.78%
THB LT EERER (notes 2 and 3)
(P72 &3)
Mdm lu Pun Family interest 581,466,500 — 4414%
i et REBHER (note 5)
(H35)
Share options (=) BmsE
Capacity/ Number of Number of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held underlying shares
REREH B4 g BHEZEBREHE HERGEE
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner
RERIIE S EmlaA 76,901,500 76,901,500
Notes: Bist
1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company 1, Goldcorp Industrial Limited /5— A 2B & 1

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr.
Hung Yung Lai and Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn
is wholly owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.
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3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of
Great Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one
third of the voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei
Ling is deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same
431,782,500 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting
power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is
deemed, by virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same
431,782,500 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial
Limited as mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is
deemed to be interested in the same 431,782,500 shares held by
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mdm Iu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung
Yung Lai and is deemed to be interested in these shares in which
Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or taken to be interested for the
purpose of the SFO. She is also deemed to be interested in the
76,901,500 share options and the 72,782,500 shares beneficially
owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai as mentioned in Note 4 above for
the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
directors or chief executives of the Company were not
aware of any other person (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who was interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of
any other member of the Group or any other substantial
shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which he/she is taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which
were required to be entered into the register required to be kept
by the Company, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,
were as follows:

EERIERITBRAERRKRS - HBERORE
EECERRAR

MN-Z-TE+-_F=1+—0 ARFEERT
BN A DB S E M IR EE(TERES
R HAE GBI XV EB (BB ARIEST1E) ) Z AR
7 - ABRARD REEEPATAREESRBEE
BIEXV BT R ESH IAMEANA R KT
ERIUAR (BREESREZSFRBEKRINZE
ESORRIES B /ER A S SR R) » SRIKRE
H M EIEGIEI52{FBE BN AR R BIFNERL
fi =k 7BR & GEM MR RIFES5.48E5.67 KA S
ANRE R PR ERS RAR AT

Directors’ interests in securities of the Company: EERRQRTRSHES :
Percentage
of aggregate
Interest in interests to
underlying total issued
Capacity/ Interests in shares of share capital
Long/ Nature of ordinary share Aggregate of the
Name of Directors Short Position interests shares options interests Company
REBRE EEARRAERT
REBRS P HHER RABREN
Esng %/ %A 51/ Bz ER R RS miER BREZEAIL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Long Position Corporate interest 431,782,500 - 431,782,500 32.78%
RERIIS ST e EE (note 1)
(Hfz#1)
Long Position Beneficial owner 72,782,500 76,901,500 143,859,000 10.92%
e BB A
Mr. Hung Ying Long Position Beneficial owner 14,547,500 3,862,822 18,410,322 1.40%
REB A e Emla A
Mr. Lin Xue Xin Long Position Beneficial owner 9,470,000 5,809,021 15,279,021 1.16%
MEF A& S BB A
Mr. Pao Ping Wing Long Position Beneficial owner - 307,606 307,606 0.02%
IR & e Emla A
Mr. Thomas Tam Long Position Beneficial owner - 307,606 307,606 0.02%
B e Emla A
Mr. Lo King Man Long Position Beneficial owner - 307,606 307,606 0.02%
ERNEE e Emfa A
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Directors’ interests in the associated corporation:

ESREBOEERRER

Percentage of
total number

of shares
of the
Name of the Number of associated
Long/ Capacity/Nature associated ordinary corporations
Name of Director Short Position  of interests corporation shares held (note 2)
{HAREE L E
IR A7 48 B Y
B
EEpnA ®O%R B HERER HEEEIEEE BHENEERHE (F$aE2)
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Long Position Beneficial owner  Goldcorp 1 50%
RERITS S e E=BA Industrial
Limited
Notes: Bzt -
1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai 1. 22 L R% 15 B Goldcorp Industrial Limited 574 - BEghiE s
has 50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited. 4 3 Goldcorp Industrial Limited 1 450% Hy#E2s

2. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2020 composed of 2 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debenture
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors and eligible employees, and has been expired on
27 August 2011. Under the Scheme, the board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date and
have come to its expiration. All other respects of the provisions
of the Scheme shall remain in full force and holders of all options
granted under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled
to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of
the Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, a new
share option scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011
(the"New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry of the
Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are same with
the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 28 February
2011 (the “SGM”), the Scheme mandate limit was refreshed
so that the Company was authorised to grant share options
under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the SGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 May
2016 (the “AGM”), the scheme mandate limit under the share
option scheme of the Company was refreshed again so that the
Company was authorised to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the refreshed
mandate limit, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 May
2018 (the “AGM”), the scheme mandate limit under the share
option scheme of the Company was refreshed again so that the
Company was authorised to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 61,032,000 shares under the refreshed
mandate limit, representing approximately 6.95% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the
exercise of options granted and to be granted to each Participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period up to the date of grant must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of grant.
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The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than the
higher of the closing price of the share on the date of grant of
the option and the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28 days
from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board to each
grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of 10 years from
the date of grant.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of HK$0.36
immediately before the day on which options were granted.
Options granted on 9 October 2007 were expired during year
2017.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme
at an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing
price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which options
were granted. Options granted on 19 January 2010 were expired
during year 2020.

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of the
Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of HK$0.84
immediately before the day on which options were granted.
Options granted on 16 August 2010 were expired during year
2020.
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On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per share to Mr.
Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately before the day on
which options were granted. The grant of share options to Mr.
Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate to allot, issue and deal
with the shares of the Company upon conversion of the foregoing
share options were approved by the SGM held on 28 February
2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per share to its
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing
price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day on which options
were granted. The grant of share options to its employees of the
Company and the specific mandate to allot, issue and deal with
the shares of the Company upon conversion of the foregoing
share options were approved by the SGM held on 28 February
2011.

On 24 June 2013, the Company granted 59,780,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.1122 per share to a
Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.101 immediately before the day on
which options were granted.

On 15 May 2015, the Company granted 21,400,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.43 per share to a
Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.43 immediately before the day on
which options were granted.

On 7 April 2017, the Company granted 86,440,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Share
Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.182 per share to its
directors, employees and consultants of the Group. Shares of the
Company were at closing price of HK$0.182 immediately before
the day on which options were granted.
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The summary details of options granted are as follows:

BhgEsBEFBOT

Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of Number of share options
Name of directors, outstanding share options share options share options  outstanding
continuous contract as at granted exercised lapsed as at
employees and Adjusted 1 January during during during 31 December
consultants Exercise period exercise price 2020 the year the year the year 2020
RZB=2F R=B=%%
-A-8 +ZA=t-H
E=ng T KMfE  FRERE  FRETR  FREXX KT
BESHEERER d TRE BREZE BREZE BREZE  BREZE  BREZE
HK$
BT
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 201010 0.1690 709,860 - - (709,860) -
et 18 January 2020
“E-ZELATNRE
—TZZF-A+/\B
Thomas Tam 19 July 201010 0.1690 709,860 - - (709,860) -
HKEE 18 January 2020
ZZ-TFLATNAE
—TZZF-A+/\B
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 0.1690 709,860 - - (709,860) -
EEX 18 January 2020
“Z-ZFLATNRE
“E-EF-A+/\H
Hung Ying 19 July 201010 0.1690 2,957,750 - - (2,957,750) -
B 18 January 2020
“T-TELATARE
“E-EF-A+/\H
Lin Xue Xin 19 July 2010 to 0.1690 769,015 - - (769,015) -
MR 18 January 2020
“F-FFLAAAE
“E-EF-A+N\H
Continuous contract 19 July 2010 to 0.1690 3,229,363 - - (3,229,863) -
employees (other than 18 January 2020
directors) “E-TFtATNEE
BEANES (ESRN  —T-TF-ATNR
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 0.7100 1,833,805 - - (1,833,805) -
E 15 August 2020
“Z——F-A+rHE
ZZ-ZF\A+RA
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Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of Number of share options
Name of directors, outstanding share options share options share options  outstanding
continuous contract as at granted exercised lapsed as at
employees and Adjusted 1 January during during during 31 December
consultants Exercise period exercise price 2020 the year the year the year 2020
R-BZ2F R-B=%F
-A-H +ZRA=t-H
E=ng FE T AME  FRERE  FRETE  FREXAX MR
BEANEERER idt TRE BREZE BREZE BREZE  BREZE  BREZE
HK$
BT
Lin Xue Xin 16 February 2011 to 0.7100 366,761 - - (366,761) -
R 15 August 2020
ZE—%ZATrEE
ZZ-ZFE\A+RA
Continuous contract 16 February 2011 to 0.7100 591,550 - - (591,550) -
employees (other than 15 August 2020
directors) “E——E-f+XEE
BEANES (ESRN  —T-TFN\ATERA
Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 0.6170 76,901,500 - - - 76,901,500
Rl 9 January 2021
“Z-—FZA-T/\HE
—E--5-ANR
Lin Xue Xin 28 February 2011 10 0.6085 816,339 - - - 816,339
ST 12 January 2021
“Z-—FZA-T/\HE
“Z-f-AtZH
Continuous contract 28 February 2011 to 0.6035 13,723,960 - - - 13,723,960
employees (other than 12 January 2021
directors) “F——%-A-+)\HE
RESHES (B3R  —T-—45-A+ZH
Hung Ying 24 June 2013 to 0.0948 47,324 — - - 47,324
s 23 June 2023
“E-ZERXAZTNAE
ZECZERACTE
A
Continuous contract 24 June 2013 to 0.0948 7,335,220 - - - 7,335,220
employees (other than 23 June 2023
directors) —E-ZFAA-tRmAZ
REGNES (B3R  —T-=FRA-t=
A
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Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of Number of share options
Name of directors, outstanding share options share options share options  outstanding
continuous contract as at granted exercised lapsed as at
employees and Adjusted 1 January during during during 31 December
consultants Exercise period exercise price 2020 the year the year the year 2020
R-B-%F R-BZ%E
) bl +ZA=t-H
E=ng e AMiE  FRERE  FRETE FREXAX KM
BESHEERER d TRE BREZE BREZE BREZE  BREZE  BREZE
HK$
BT
Hung Ying 15 May 2015 to 0.3635 2,247,890 - - - 2,247,890
2 14 May 2025
“Z-nFRA+tHAE
“E-RFRATIA
Lin Xue Xin 15 May 2015 to 0.3635 3,549,300 - - - 3,549,300
EST 14 May 2025
“Z-nFRA+tHAE
ZE-RFERATIA
Continuous contract 15 May 2015 to 0.3635 16,859,175 - - - 16,859,175
employees (other than 14 May 2025
directors) “Z-nFRA+tHAE
BEANVES (ESRYY)  —T-HFTATEA
Hung Ying 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 1,567,608 - - - 1,567,608
B 6 Apri 2027
ZE—tENAtAE
ZEZHENAKRA
Lin Xue Xin 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 1,443,382 - - - 1,443,382
R 6 Apri 2027
ZE—tENAtAE
ZEZHENAKRA
Pao Ping Wing 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 307,606 - - - 307,606
et UL 6 April 2027
ZE—t¥NMAtAE
ZEZHENAKRH
Thomas Tam 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 307,606 - - - 307,606
HEE 6 April 2027
ZE—tEMAtAE
ZEHENAKRA
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Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of Number of share options
Name of directors, outstanding share options share options share options  outstanding
continuous contract as at granted exercised lapsed as at
employees and Adjusted 1 January during during during 31 December
consultants Exercise period exercise price 2020 the year the year the year 2020
R-BZ2F R-B=%F
-B-H +T=A=t+-8H
E=ng T KMIE  FRERE  FRETE FREXX KT
BREANEERER L TRE BREZE BREZE BREZE  BREZE  BREZE
HK$
BT
Lo King Man 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 307,606 - - - 307,606
ERX 6 April 2027
“T—tFMALAE
ZTHEMAKRA
Continuous contract 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 36,131,874 - - (5,915,500) 30,216,374
employees (other than 6 April 2027
directors) “E-tFMALAE
BEAVES (BEERN  —ZCLFMARE
Consultants 7 April 2017 to 0.1538 42,644,839 - - - 42,644,839
B 6 April 2027
“T-tFMALAE
) V=
216,069,553 - - (17,793,824) 198,275,729

The exercise price for the options granted and number of shares
in respect of options granted were adjusted to reflect the impact
of the rights issue during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’and chief executives’ interest and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” below and the share
option scheme disclosures in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding
company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company or a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and substantial
shareholders as herein disclosed, the Directors are not aware
of any persons who as at 31 December 2020 were entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of the voting power
at general meetings of the Company and who were able, as a
practical matter, to direct or influence the management of the
Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates,
as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group or has any other conflict of interests
with the Group during year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on page 40 to page 70
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company maintained the
amount of public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020 36

EEERR

BAXFEBEZES  BEEBRREREEBRRIN -
ERNTAEFR T _TF+_A=+—H &
AT ERNARBBRRAE L1TERHIEHS5% KA
LHREFRE - REAER LEERFEARTZER
=

BE - HESIREARQFZ LHES

RAZHMFE - ARAHEEMME LR BERE
B hESBOARBZ EHES

BmERNBEER

REE_Z_ZTF+_A=+—HBIEFE AQF
2EBEE EEHERRIEIERIEFTARSSAZ
#8E AL (FERGEM R E) B EETHEARE
BEB(TwmEEX B FF NIRRT 2 A
TEok AR B E A A EM TS EE -

EER

ARRZEEERTRABRRAFEREFA0
EF0RZIEEARAREEIAN -

RHARFRE
REARREARGEERESNER RRESHAA
EEERNAHE B RARR MR GEM EmAR R
MELRBRHRE -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)

Hung Ying (Vice Chairman)

Lin Xue Xin (Chief Executive Officer)
Cui Jian

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Pao Ping Wing
Thomas Tam
Lo King Man

Pursuant to Claus 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Cui Jian, Mr. Lin Xue
Xin and Mr. Pao Ping Wing shall retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All of
the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr. Lo King
Man and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 21
of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and chief executive of
the Company and the five highest paid employees of the Group
are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company or a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. During year 2020, renewed
tenancy agreement was entered into between the Company as
tenant and related company, Sing Lee Pharmaceutical Import &
Export Co., Limited, as landlord. The transactions contemplated
under the renewed tenancy agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions (CCTs) of the Group pursuant to GEM
Listing Rule 20.29. The CCTs are exempted from the reporting,
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’
approval requirement pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.74.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEREABE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

The Company complied with the code provisions in Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report which set out in Appendix 15 in the GEM Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company
periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
its continuous compliance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months ended
31 December 2020 as set out in GEM Listing Rules 5.48 to 5.67.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors and
the Company was not aware of any noncompliance with the
required standard of dealings regarding the securities transactions
by Directors.

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Group are also subject to
compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No incident of non-
compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company comprises :
Executive Directors : Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)

. Hung Ying (Vice Chairman)

. Lin Xue Xin (Chief Executive Officer)
: Cui Jian

Independent Non-
executive Directors

. Pao Ping Wing
: Thomas Tam
. Lo King Man

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors its
financial performance and maintains effective oversight over the
management. The board members are fully committed to their
roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the shareholders’
value in the long run, and have aligned the Group’s goals and
directions with the prevailing economic and market conditions.
Daily operations and administration are delegated to the
management.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group at each period end and of the
results and cash flows for that period. In preparing these financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors
have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for providing
with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring that all
Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman on governance
matters. All directors have unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Company secretary
keeps minutes of all meetings which are available for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Directors. The
Company Secretary also plays an essential role in the relationship
between the Company and its shareholders, including assisting
the Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the Board
has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request under
appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by the
Company.
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Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a period
of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05 (1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of his
independence, and the Company considers such directors to be
independent in accordance with each and the various guidelines
set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Pao Ping Wing, (“Mr. Pao”) will retire by rotation as
Independent non-executive director (“INED”) at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election. Mr. Pao
has served on the Board over 9 years. Being long-serving
Director, he has developed an in-depth understanding of
the Company’s operations and business, and has expressed
objective views and given independent guidance to the
Company, and bring fresh perspectives to the board over the
years. There is no empirical evidence that the long services of Mr.
Pao would impair his independent judgements. After identifying
potential INEDs and evaluated by the board, Mr. Pao would still
be able to bring fresh perspectives to the board.The Board is
satisfied that Mr. Pao will continue to have the required character
and experience to fulfill the role of an INED and considers that
the re-election of Mr. Pao as an INED at the forthcoming AGM is
in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group’s
business, the Board considered that the directors have a balance
of skills and experience for the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance to
indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities incurred by them
in discharging their duties. The increase coverage for the Directors
is reviewed on an annual basis. Throughout the year, no claim had
been made against the Directors of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the Listing
Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one another in
all aspects, including finance, family and business.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is subject to his
re-appointment by the Company at an AGM upon retirement.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of
the Company and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and (i) as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the next
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
In additions, in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, one
third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders at each annual general meeting of the
Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The Group
also provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements,
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. Circulars or guidance notes are
issued to Directors and senior management where appropriate, to
ensure awareness of best corporate governance practices.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors RZZ_ZTE+_A=+—HEE FFL2HEIUT

participated in the following trainings: br= 1
Type of Trainings
IR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai ARENIE SEAE AB
B,z
Mr. Hung Ying RS A AB
H.Z
Mr. Lin Xue Xin REFT A4 AB
F.Z
Mr. Cui Jian ERSE AB
H.Z
Independent Non-Executive Directors By EHITES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing NPt AB
H.Z
Mr. Thomas Tam HREESE AB
F.Z
Mr. Lo King Man EENXEAE AB
B, Z
A Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties B MREBREEFREZCEEATE
B: Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general 2, : BMEAELE —RETEERESIRE TR
business or directors’ duties etc. BHER
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITHAER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of % & AFRIE ST AME XS A2, 15T AR = 7T
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and KA ZBEERED - TEAR— ALTEE - AR
not be performed by the same individual. To ensure a balance of  {R#E S R EHED T8 - RAREFE - ARARE
power and authority, for the current reporting year, the Chairman ~ E& T FEARERELL - RRARTTHER AMEH
of the Board of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai , the Chief  %c4  RERME o4 MAMREF LA AR A BIHHIT
Executive Officer of the Company is Lin Xue Xin. Mr. Hung E% -

Yung Lai and Mr. Lin Xue Xin are also Executive Directors of the

Company.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective T/EAEBEEETSLFEASEE  UHRES
running of the Board and ensuring that all material issues are & N5 HAZR M HAIBEEEE - 1THRAE
discussed by the Board in a timely and constructive manner. The B & &I A &%/ M T AREBE LI ERES
Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the management of the

day-to-day operations and the implementation of the approved

strategies of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and
the audit and risk management committees, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on the GEM’s website www.hkgem.com and
the Company’s website at www.singlee.com.cn. All the Board
committees should report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the Code which included developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
Directors, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
provision in the Code and disclosures in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November 2005.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing, and other
members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr.
Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration
committee which have been revised effective on 10 May 2019
to comply with the new requirements set out in the revised code
provisions are posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

During the Year, the remuneration committee has considered
and reviewed the remuneration packages and emoluments of
Directors and senior management and consider that are fair and
reasonable.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012.
The chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and other
members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr.
Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee which have been made effective on 10 May 2019 to
comply with the new requirements set out in the revised code
provisions are posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identify suitable
candidates for appointment as directors; make recommendations
to the Board on appointment or re-appointment of an succession
planning for directors; assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors; formulate and review the Board Diversity
Policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

During the Year, the nomination committee considered the past
performance, qualification, general market conditions and the
Company’s articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates of directorship. The nomination committee discussed
and reviewed the retirement and re-election of Directors.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The audit and risk management committee was established in
August 2001. The chairman of the audit and risk management
committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and other members include Mr.
Thomas Tam and Mr. Lo King Man, all of them are independent
non-executive directors. The written terms of reference of the
audit and risk management committee which have been revised
effective on 10 May 2019 to comply with the new requirement set
out in the revised code provision are posted on the GEM website
and the Company’s website.

The primary duties of the audit and risk management committee
are mainly to review the financial information, oversight of
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems, audit plan and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.
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The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules in that at least one of the members of the audit and risk
management committee (which must comprise a minimum of
three members and must be chaired by an Independent non-
executive director) is an independent non-executive director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
related financial management expertise.

Review of financial results

During the Year, the audit and risk management committee
reviewed the 2020 Consolidated Financial Statements. Based
on this review and discussions with management, the audit and
risk management committee was satisfied that the Consolidated
Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with applicable
accounting standards and fairly present the Group’s financial
position and results for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
audit and risk management committee therefore recommended
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2020 be approved by the Board.

Review of risk management and internal control systems

During the Year, the audit and risk management committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s policies and procedures
regarding internal control systems (including financial, operational,
IT, risk management, information security, legal, compliance and
those controls designed to detect material fraud) by reviewing the
work of the Internal audit department and regular reports from
management including those on risk management, regulatory
compliance and legal matters.

The audit and risk management committee reviewed and
concurred with the management’s confirmation that for the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were effective with reference to
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) principles. The management’s confirmation was endorsed
by the audit and risk management committee and submitted to
the Board.

Review of accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions

During the Year, the audit and risk management committee
reviewed and was satisfied with the adequacy of the resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has had policy of diversity in board appointments
as reflected in the current composition of the Board which is
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in terms
of nationality, professional background and experience, as shown
in the following illustrations:

A Role of directors

IN

Executive Directors
Independent Non-Executive Directors 3
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Nationality

Hong Kong, China
China

*

ethnic origin.

Professional background

Business
Computer and information technology

Human settlements planning and development

Accounting and auditing
Education and cultural development
Computer science and technology
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D Age

35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75-84

N wWwoNO

We believe that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group
thinking. We recognise that board diversity is an essential element
contributing to the sustainable development of the Company. The
objectives of this Policy are, with the support of our shareholders,
to have a Board which:

a) is characterised by a broad range of views arising from
different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions;
and
C) has sustainable development as its core value,

and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders, particularly
the long-term interests of our shareholders, fairly and effectively.
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For the purpose of this Policy, we considers the concept of
diversity incorporates a number of different aspects, such
as professional experiences, business perspectives, skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity and length of service. The achievement of these
objectives is measurable on an objective review by shareholders of
the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of background
and experience of individual directors and the effectiveness of the
Board in promoting shareholders’ interests.

In order for shareholders to judge for themselves whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a gradual move
to increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed which they
support, we shall continue to provide sufficient information to
shareholders about the size, qualifications, characteristics etc.
of each individual Board member and therefore, the Board as a
whole.

The nomination committee has been charged with the review of
the Board Diversity Policy on a periodic basis. The nomination
committee believes that the approach of review of the Policy may
take the form of an analysis of the Board in the different aspects
of diversity as set out above having regard to the sustainable
development of the Company, supplemented with shareholders’
feedback on the diversity of the Board and its overall effectiveness
in promoting shareholders’ interests.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES MEETINGS

The individual attendance records of each director at the &BEERHE-_ZEZ-_ZF+_A=+—HLEFEH
meetings of the Board, Audit and Risk Management Committee, FEH€ - EXLEKRSEEES ¥HEE< -
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual 1IEZEE8e€NRBAFTEAS SR 2 HENTE
General Meeting during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set

out in the following table:

ExEnESZEEER

Audit
and Risk Annual
Management Remuneration Nomination General
Directors B Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BRR AR
Ezg ERZES FHzEe REZE® KRRBEFAE
Number of meetings held ~ &HET Y 5 4 1 1 1
Number of meetings attended / €% RE,/ &%
Number of meetings held BITRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Hung Yung Lei BRRME R 5/5 1N il il
Mr. Hung Ying i ok 5/5 17
Mr. Lin Xue Xin MEREE 5/5 0/
Mr. Cui Jian ERELE 5/5 0N
Independent non-executive B3I FH(TES
directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing AL E 5/5 4/4 11 11 11
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE R 5/5 4/4 11 11 11
Mr. Lo King Man EEXEE 5/5 4/4 1/1 11 1/1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
the independent auditor to the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately as follows:

BB

B REMREBE T _TF+_A=1+—Hit
FEBRAAR B RENZER L IFZBIRGE 2L
& -

2020 2019

—E-F —E—N

RMB’000 RMB’000

Type of services PR3 B ARET T ARETIT
Audit services ZERTS 1,115 1,443
Non-audit services IERZERTS - 350
Total HRET 1,115 1,793

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the company and its subsidiaries, in accordance
with accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including ESG-
related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, maintaining sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems (including those for ESG-related risks)
and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard Shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. To this end, management
continues to allocate resources for internal control and risk
management systems compatible with the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
Internal Control — Integrated Framework 2013 principles to provide
reasonable, though not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives.
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Risk Management

At the Group, risk is defined as a potential action, event or
circumstance that could impact the Company’s ability, favorably
or unfavorably, to meet its strategic goals.

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in which
it operates. The aim is to identify risks and then manage them so
that they can be understood, reduced, mitigated, transferred or
avoided. This demands a proactive approach to risk management
and an effective group-wide risk management framework.

Risk governance structure

The Group’s risk governance structure is based on a “Three Lines
of Defence” model, with oversight and directions from the Board
and Audit and Risk Management Committee.
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The Board EE=&

Audit and Risk Management Committee B R AR EEEE S

The Management i [E
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Operational Management
and Internal Controls

EEEER AR

(Risk Ownership)
(EiEE )

Risk Management
Functions
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(Risk Control)
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Roles Functions At TRRE
The Board o Has overall responsibility for the risk| |£Z& o HEREBRAMES
management and internal control systems. ZREREST-

o QOversees the actions of the Management s EEERENAREER
and monitors the overall effectiveness of the BB B TR B N EF B I
risk management system and internal control BERVRBEA N
function.

o QOversees and reviews processes and controls o EEBRELHBREE
for strategic and operational risk and monitors A2 5 R PR I FE B -
the effectiveness of the established controls WRBBEZRERE
through the Audit and Risk Management BLZEERERNEH
Committee. IR R A R o

Audit and Risk e Supports the Board in monitoring the =R RER ¢ WPEFCEREBRE
Management performance of the risk management system EBERES BERAMERAREIER
Committee and key risks and internal control systems. B R NEPEIE R AR o

Reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function.

Reviews risks raised during annual risk
registration exercise, and other risks and
concerns.

Approves Company’s risk tolerance.

Evaluates and determines the nature and extent
of the risks the Board is ready to endorse for
the Group to take in pursuing the delivery of the
Group’s strategic objectives.

Ensures that an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems is
established and maintained by the Group.

Oversees the Management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Oversees the Management in their risk
mitigation efforts.

¢ EEAREABELE
RERVBRRIE o

o EEEFERRELR
ERREHOZERRIK
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o BARDANAARE
BKE o
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Roles Functions At gt
Internal Audit *  Independent investigations regarding certain NEE o BETEHETARER
allegations of fraud and violations of the Group’s AEETAERNRE
Code of Conduct and other company policies. AR FETE R
E o

¢ Carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness

o HAREMREREER
ARERZGRARH

balance of risk and return.

e Designs, implements and reviews the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems.

e Communicates and assesses the Group’s risk
profile and material risks at the Group level.

¢ Tracks progress of mitigation plans of material
risks and report on detailed examinations of
specific risks as required.

e Qversees business units as well as group risk
and the control activities relevant to respective
functions.

¢ Ensures that a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems
has been conducted at least annually and
provide such confirmation to the Board through

the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

of the Group’s risk management and internal MBERELE AT REB Y
control systems. A .
The Management *  Provides leadership and guidance for the| | BB o BEBHEDRZEREG

FlRHEERIE -

o Rt BRRRERAK
EHEREERANE

o RAREMERBRRLA
EARRETEALT
fi o

o RMMETEARRA&
AHEIMEE - YRR
I s 7E R B ) A
BER

o EEXBE[L REE
B ARERBEHA
B ETEE -

¢ RBRRESEFRI-R
EREERANERE
BRI LEBEZ
FEBERZEEME
SE{rLARAER -

The Management, which co-ordinates enterprise risk management
activities and reviews significant aspects of risk management for
the Group, reports to the Audit and Risk Management Committee
at each regularly scheduled meeting, including amongst other
things, significant risks of the Group and the appropriate
mitigation and/or transfer of identified risks. The operating units of
the Group, as risk owners, identify, evaluate, mitigate and monitor
their own risks, and report such risk management activities to the
Management on a regularly basis. The Management assesses
and presents regular reports to Audit and Risk Management
Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting.
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The Management and employees have evaluated control
environment and conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, both at the entity level and the various processes/
transactions levels. We have documented those processes which
are critical to the Group’s performance. Within this exercise, key
risks have been identified, along with the controls required to
mitigate those risks, after which, such key risks and controls are
continually reviewed and updated on an annual basis. High-risk
key controls are tested annually by our management and internal
audit. Based on the results of those tests, process owners
are able to represent to Senior Management that their internal
controls are working as intended or that necessary corrections
have been made where control weaknesses have been found.
Internal auditors report to Audit and Risk Management Committee
that controls have been working properly or have been modified
as required.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also assessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. Where
appropriate, the external auditor’s recommendations are adopted
and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls
will be made.

The Group’s risk management objectives:

. At a strategic level, the Group focuses on the identification
and management of material risks at the Group, business
and functional levels, in order to better equip itself to
pursue the Group’s strategic and business objectives.

. At an operational level, the Group aims to identify,
assess, evaluate and mitigate operational hazards and
risks in order to create a safe, healthy, efficient and
environmentally-friendly workplace for its employees
whilst ensuring products and services provided safety and
health, minimising environmental impact, and securing
asset integrity.
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The Group’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria

The Group’s risk appetite represents the amount of risk the Group
is willing to undertake in pursuit of its strategic and business
objectives. In line with expectations of its stakeholders, the Group
will only take reasonable risks that (a) fit its strategy and capability,
(b) can be understood and managed, and (c) do not expose the
Group to:

. material financial loss;

o incidents affecting safety and health of employees;
. material breach of regulations;

] damage of the Group’s reputation and brand name;
] business/supply interruption; and

. severe environmental incidents.

Based on the above, the Group has established its risk monitoring
in the form of a risk assessment matrix to help rank risks and
prioritise risk management efforts at the Group level. Business
units are required to adopt the same risk matrix structure in order
to establish their own risk profiling, determine consequence and
likelihood of identified risks with reference to their own materiality
and circumstances as well as establishing risk mitigation
strategies.

Inherent risk assessment matrix
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Likelihood Rating

BAETHEMER
1. Highly 2. Not 4. Strong
Impact Rating unlikely expected 3. Sometimes possibility 5. Very likely
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4. Major High High Very high
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2. Minor Low Low Low
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1. Insignificant Low Low Low Low Low
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Risk management process

The following diagram illustrates the key processes used by the
Group to identify, evaluate and manage the Group’s significant

risks:
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The management establishes common risk language and risk assessment criteria for the
Group.

Business units identify the risks which may potentially impact the achievement of their
business objectives, and analyze and evaluate the significance of such risk.

Business units assess the adequacy of existing controls, determine and implement
treatment plans where risk mitigants are actionable.

Business units monitor risk mitigating activities.

The management tracks the progress of risk mitigating activities; reports the consolidated
view of risks regularly to audit and risk management committee;and shares risk knowledge
across business units to enhance the risk management standard of the Group. Group
internal audit reports regularly to the Board and/or audit and risk management committee
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to provide independent assurance on the effectiveness of risk management function.
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Is integrated into business and decision-making processes
including strategy formulation, business planning, capital
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-
to-day operations management.

Involves establishing the context, identifying risks,
assessing their consequences and likelihood, evaluating
risk level, control gaps and priorities, and developing
control and mitigation plans. This is a continuous process
with periodic monitoring and review in place. It is also an
interactive process with stakeholder communication and
consultation.

The Group adopts an integrated bottom-up and top-
down risk review process to enable (a) comprehensive
identification and prioritisation of all material risks
throughout the Group, (b) escalation of material risks at
the right managerial level, (c) effective risk dialogue among
the management team, and (d) proper oversight of risk
mitigation efforts.

Bottom-up process:
o Business units and group functions are required to

submit their material risks identified through their
risk management process to the management.
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The management, through aggregation, filtering
and prioritising processes as well as consultation
process, compile a Group Risk Management
Report. The senior management reviews and
scrutinises the material risks and ensures the
appropriate controls and mitigation measures are in
place or in progress.

Following review by the senior management, Group
Risk Management Report is submitted to the audit
and risk management committee with a summary
of the material risks circulated to the Board.

Top-down process:

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic
risks, which might have a material impact on the
Group over a longer timeframe, are monitored and
discussed on a regular basis by the management.

The management facilitates ongoing emerging risk
review and management discussion by compiling
relevant information from both internal and external
sources. Overarching strategic risks are reviewed
and discussed during the annual business planning
process. Emerging risks that are identified and
considered material are further assessed and
monitored by relevant business units or group
functions.

Internal control is an integral part of enterprise
risk management. The Group’s enterprise risk
management framework encompasses internal
control, forming a more robust conceptualization
and tool for management. Risk management is
closely linked to the Group’s Integrated Framework
of Internal Control, key controls are subject to
testing in order to assess their effectiveness.

In the annual business planning process, business
units are required to identify all material risks
that may impact their achievement of business
objectives. Identified risks are evaluated based
on the same set of risk profiling criteria as the risk
review process. Plans to mitigate the identified
risks are developed for implementation and budget
purposes.
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Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to oversee the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. This is
achieved through a defined management structure with specified
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limits of authority and defined control responsibility designed to:

. Achieve business objectives and safeguard assets against

unauthorised use or disposition;

o Ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or
for publication; and

. Ensure compliance with the relevant legislation and

regulations.

Internal control framework

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal
controls which continues to be consistent with Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) which comprises

17 principles on effective internal controls as illustrated below:
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operating philosophy,
risk appetite, integrity,
and ethical values.

control

The management establishes, with board
oversight, structures, reporting lines, and
appropriate authorities and responsibilities in
the pursuit of objectives

Demonstrates a commitment to attract,
develop, and retain competent individuals in
alignment with objectives

Holds individuals accountable for their internal
control responsibilities in the pursuit of
objectives
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Policies and procedures
are Implemented to

contribute to the mitigation of risks to the
achievement of objectives to acceptable levels

BisBRRIER - BREN
BITAERA RO ERR

5 Components 17 Principles SKEZR 1THRA
Risk assessment: *  Specifies objectives with sufficient clarity to E T o EEEMHER - LB
enable the identification and assessment of AP RFTEERE M
Risks are identified and risks relating to objectives iRER KT A LA LA
the likely impact on TE -
the organization is o |dentifies risks to the achievement of its o HBARSMEEREH
assessed. objectives across the entity and analyses risks BORRAZHERR -
as a basis for determining how the risks should LA 1 B E IR IR (]
be managed ERELRRMAR
o Considers the potential for fraud in assessing o EFEEREMEEN
risks to the achievement of objectives B ZREEMNE
BIThR
¢ |dentifies and assesses changes that could
significantly impact the system of internal o BRIMAEEANDERE
control ARUREREATE
M
Control activities: s Selects and develops control activities that | | #4158 - o EERFEERRE

BEHAENZRBRR
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Relevant information is
communicatedinan | e
acceptable format
and timely fashion to
enable the organization
to meet its objectives.

control

Internally communicates information, including
objectives and responsibilities for internal
control, necessary to support the functioning of
internal control

Communicates with external parties regarding
matters affecting the functioning of internal
control
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made to improve deficiencies in a timely manner to those

5 Components 17 Principles 5KEZ 1THRA
Monitoring: o Selects, develops, and performs ongoing and/ | | E51EE) - o EE -EHUEEREA
or separate evaluations to ascertain whether K/ GBI MG o
The internal control the components of internal control are present BEEZENHEGIRE ENBEENERZRE
process is continually and functioning [EERRNERIELE FEUERER
monitored. IE - DAREREEEEE) -
Modifications are o Evaluates and communicates internal control LI == i 0

% LEEHREER

internal control parties responsible for taking corrective action, A E#HERERA
activities as a result including senior management and the board of T BEREEEAE
of the monitoring directors, as appropriate MEZL(WEA)fEN
Process. Bl

Within this comprehensive internal control framework, EZE2HEANIPEITIERRN  EEEEESNRIEEAE

management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone
from the top, performing risk assessments, and owning the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Other teams such as Finance, Legal, and Human Resources
provide assistance and expertise to management to assist it in
undertaking its responsibilities. The Board and its audit and risk
management committee oversee the actions of management and
monitor the effectiveness of the established controls, assisted by
assurance provided by the internal auditors.

Control standards, checks and balances

Built into the Group’s system are checks and balances. In
addition, as an integral part of our internal control systems, well
defined policies and procedures are properly documented and
communicated. The corporate policies form the basis of all the
Group’s major guidelines and procedures and set forth the control
standards required for the functioning of the Group’s business
entities. The policies address legal, regulatory, and operational
topics, including, for example, intellectual property, data privacy,
employee health and safety, delegation of authority, information
security, and business continuity.

Our internal control systems are based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability and the systems
cover every activity and transaction of our Group. We emphasise
to our employees that everyone, no matter where he or she
stands in the corporate hierarchy, is an important part of our
internal control systems and we expect them to contribute to that
system.
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Additionally, the Group has a strong corporate culture based on
good business ethics and accountability. The Code of Conduct,
which applies to all employees, forms the basis of the Group’s
commitment to conducting all business with uncompromising
integrity and ethical behavior. The Code also helps employees
determine when to ask for advice, and how to obtain it. All
employees are required to comply with the Code. The Group
regards any violation of the Code as a serious matter and is
committed to investigating all reported concerns. Furthermore,
in keeping with best practices, the Group has developed and
implemented an Anti-Corruption Policy which reinforces the Code
and provides additional specific guidance regarding compliance
with rules and laws related to corruption. In addition to setting
out guidelines, principles and values, we recognise that an
environment where employees feel free to bring problems to
management is also necessary to make our internal control
systems effective. Our Whistleblowing Policy makes it clear that all
reports to management will be handled confidentially to the fullest
extent possible under the circumstances.

This comprehensive internal controls framework established by
the Group covers all activities and transactions. Management
performs periodic enterprise wide risk assessments and
continuously monitors and reports progress of action plans to
address these key risks. Management also assesses business
risks when formulating corporate strategies, and tracks and
reports on the implementation of strategic initiatives, business
plans, budgets and financial results regularly to the Board.

To assist the audit and risk management committee in its
oversight and monitoring activities, the Group maintains an
independent internal audit function. Internal audit department, with
its function independent of the Group’s business operations, plays
an important role in monitoring the Group’s internal governance.
Internal audit provides objective assurance to the audit and risk
management committee that the system of internal controls is
effective and operating as intended.

Key control procedures

(i) Establishing a structure with defined authority and proper
segregation of duties

- A clear organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility to facilitate systematic delegation of
authority.

— Written policies, procedures and guidelines with
defined limits of delegated authority to facilitate
effective segregation of duties and controls.
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Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

— Business units carry out their respective business
operating plans as laid down in the strategic plan
in accordance with the adopted policies and
procedures.

— An annual budget with financial targets provides
the foundation for the allocation of resources in
accordance with prioritised business opportunities.

— Variance analyses help identify deficiencies and
enables timely remedial actions to be taken.

Designing an effective accounting and information system

— A comprehensive accounting system for providing
financial and operational performance indicators
to facilitate problem identification, and to ensure
complete, relevant and accurate financial
information for timely reporting and disclosure
purpose.

— An information system for identifying, capturing
and communicating pertinent information to enable
employees to carry out their responsibilities.

— Regular reviews for ensuring proper and legitimate
dissemination of financial information.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

— The Group regularly reviews inside information’s
policy and procedures and make recommendations
on a amendments there to, if necessary, in order
to ensure their effectiveness in making accurate,
balanced and timely disclosure of information
in accordance with disclosure obligations in the
changing regulatory environment.

Encouraging reporting on serious concern about
malpractice

— The Group operates a Whistleblowing Policy which
enables employees to raise concerns about any
malpractice, impropriety or fraud relating to internal
controls and other matters confidentially, without
fear of reprisal or victimization.
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— Under the Group Whistleblowing Policy, audit and
risk management committee are responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the actions taken in
response to disclosures made under the policy by
employees.

- Other stakeholders, such as customers and
suppliers, can also raise concerns about any
improprieties or potential improprieties of the
Group.

(vi) Ensuring controls and reviews of [T application systems as
well as principal operations

— Various controls and independent reviews are in
place to uphold the integrity, reliability, availability,
security and stability of the Group’s IT application
systems.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control
measures, the Company understands its duties under the Listing
Rules and SFO, and adheres to the important principle of timely
publication of the inside information. The Company abides by
the “Guide on disclosure of inside information” published by
the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed
a complete system of internal procedures and internal control
measures for processing and publication of information in order to
ensure the timely, accurate and appropriate disclosure of relevant
information to the shareholders and regulatory authorities.

The Group takes all reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a
disclosure requirement. In this respect, the Management ensures
that appropriate systems and procedures are put in place and
reviewed periodically to enable the Group to comply with the
disclosure requirements. The management also regularly oversees
the proper implementation and functioning of the mechanisms
and ensures that any material deficiencies are detected and
resolved in a timely manner.

Measures include but are not limited to the following:
(@) Establish controls for monitoring business and corporate

developments and events so that any potential inside
information is promptly identified and escalated.
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(b) Restrict access to inside information to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Ensure employees
who are in possession of inside information are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

(c) Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Group enters into significant negotiations.

(d) Develop procedures for responding to market rumours,
leaks and inadvertent disclosures.

(e) Provide regular training to relevant employees to help them
understand the Company’ policies and procedures as well
as their relevant disclosure duties and obligations.

(f) Disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock Exchange
before the information is released via other channels, such
as the press, wire services or posting on the Company’s
website.

Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems have been reviewed annually.

During 2020, the effectiveness of the systems of risk management
and internal controls of the Group over financial, operational
and compliance controls with emphasis on business continuity
management and procurement has been reviewed. Additionally,
the heads of major business and corporate functions were
required to undertake control self-assessments of their key
controls. These results were assessed by the senior management
and reported to the audit and risk management committee, which
then reviewed and reported the same to the Board.

The audit and risk management committee and the Board were
not aware of any areas of concern that would have a material
impact on the Group’s financial position or results of operations
and considered the risk management and internal control systems
to be generally effective and adequate including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERHRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued in
printed form and are available on the GEM website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.
com.cn;

(ii) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(V) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CREABE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted by
poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting results
will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website
after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the case may
be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such requisition must
state the object of business to be transacted at the meeting
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company or the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in such Article for
convening an extraordinary general meeting. Shareholders may
put forward proposals at general meeting of the Company by
sending the same to the Company at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEREABE

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted the dividend policy which has set out
the standard rules and guidelines to be followed by the Board in
considering whether to recommend dividend. The policy sets out
the consideration factors for recommendation and declaration
of dividend payment, such as the Group’s business and financial
performance, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
and future development plans, retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Group and other factors that the Board deems
relevant. The payment of the dividend is also subject to
shareholders’ approval and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations including the laws of Bermuda and the Bye-Laws of
the Company.

The dividend policy does not constitute a binding commitment
by the Company on its future dividend and shall not obligate the
Company to declare dividend at any time or from time to time, but
only represents a general rules and reference purpose regarding
the dividend policy. The Board will review the policy and reserve
the right to amend the said policy from time to time.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R CE: S

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE
(GROUP) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 77 to 188, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to

the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by International Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B EN RS

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

BAREFTEE

BIREH HER B ER ML - RAYWAN
GANMBRENBNRAEENEE - REEEL
ERMET LRSS HERL AT R (TR
B - BT EURSEERHEEBE R -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
HRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANESNAEERRETEE

Estimated provision of expected credit losses for
trade receivables

PR E G IR 2 1G5 RIS iR AR

We identified estimated provision of expected credit
losses for trade receivables as a key audit matter due to
the exercise of significant management judgement and
estimation for the determination of allowance for expected
credit losses of trade receivables. .

LIS N E 5 R 2 that RS B R A R p SRSt
EAEE - M OBARNEEEBETERNE SRR BRER
BR BRI TR B AR H M R AR 5T PR ©

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of the Group’s
trade receivables was RMB52,169,000, net of allowance
for credit losses of RMB1,325,000, which included those
trade receivables classified as assets held for sale of
RMB25,308,000, net of allowances for credit losses of
RMB489,000. The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on trade
receivable balances individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or on a collective basis. Except for items that
are subject to individual evaluation, which are assessed
for impairment individually, the Group estimates expected
credit losses for the remaining trade receivable balances
on a collective basis. The rates applied in the collective
assessment are based on internal credit ratings as
groupings of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The collective assessment is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
information and that is available without undue cost or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.
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Details relating to the determination of allowance for
expected credit losses of trade receivables are set out
in Notes 4, 20 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements. \ N \
BT REWE SRR BREERRREREZF RN
irE IR HRA TS - 20534 -

Qur procedures in relation to estimated provision of
expected credit losses for trade receivables included:

%ﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬂ%EE%ME'EHEHJ%%ETE%Tﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ%%@

e Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over
the processes that the management performed
for assessing the impairment of trade receivables
including the use of collective assessment;

TREE BT R E 2R OREFTE TR E 2 £
BER - BREERASTIE

e (Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
appropriateness of the basis of management’s
judgement about the determination of groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns;

TR RFHEE R ERE T AACUBRIRA 2 B HREK
R AT EE 2 @RI

e FEvaluating the reasonableness of management’s
determination of the expected credit loss rates based
on historical default rates and taking into consideration
of the forward-looking information; .
AEEEERBBEERRNEREAELERLETE
RHEERA AT

e Assessing the estimates used to determine
historical default rates by considering historical cash
collection performance of different groupings of trade
receivables; N
A BT BEBR KRR 2 bt TARREREE
FEWE 5 R Bl 2 BEIR & WK

e Discussing with the management for forward-looking
information used and assessing the information based
on publicly available information; and o
EEIR ST AR I B RARB AR E R FHE
BHEER &

e Testing the accuracy of management’s calculation of
the Q;(Eectq credit losses for trade receivables.
AAREREFERWNE SEAAPEE R RN LER

:|o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R CE: S

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB ENRE

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R CE: S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 M A% B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continueq)

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine this matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and is therefore the key audit matter. We
describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Sunnie Sy.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE&#+ = =+—HIFEE

2020 2019
—ECEH —TE-NEF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR%T ARETT
Revenue WA & 85,535 129,675
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A A (78,776) (74,622)
Gross profit EF 6,759 55,053
Other income Handg A 2,576 3,425
Impairment losses under expected FEEAEEEBE N T 2 BIEE
credit loss model, net of reversal 18 - B EWE FEZLRE
on trade receivables and HEE
contract assets (4,586) 720
Other losses HAitbE51E 7 (8,596) 973)
Distribution and selling expenses 78 M HE & (12,037) (12,488)
Administrative expenses ERE A (15,797) (14,483)
Finance costs MEER 8 (2,226) (2,360)
(Loss)/profit before tax BLAT(E518),RmF (33,907) 28,894
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigfisEe, (BH) 9 2,703 (3,890)
(Loss)/profit and total AEE(BR) RAREHE
comprehensive (expense)/ (Fx%) WA#BE
income for the year 10 (31,204) 25,004
(Loss)/earnings per share BR(ER) WE 14
— Basic (RMB cents) — ER(ARES) (2.37) 2.10
— Diluted (RMB cents) — BEH(ARES) (2.37) 2.09
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
2 A N
e AR R R
As at 31 December 2020 R —FE —F&F+ - A=4+—H
2020 2019
—EEH —E-NF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥TR AREFIT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 15 11,880 12,220
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 16 761 879
Intangible assets W EE 17 4,166 20,956
16,807 34,055
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories - finished goods FE— K 283 246
Trade and other receivables TEUNE 5 N E AR 20 38,197 79,561
Contract assets BHEE 21 583 2,261
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFABREZ CREE
through profit or loss 19 170 181
Bank balances and cash RITEBERE 22 58,358 76,170
97,591 158,419
Assets classified as held for sale DA ENE CEE 23 36,798 —
134,389 158,419
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables FERHE 5 M Bt BRRX 24 16,184 20,714
Amounts due to directors FENESIA 25 648 783
Borrowings & 26 20,668 12,243
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 439 459
Amount due to immediate holding  FEfT B #2122 A% A BIEIE
company 28 1 12
Tax liabilities HRIBEE - 139
37,950 34,350
Liabilities associated with assets B A EHE 2 EER M
classified as held for sale MAaE 23 2,193 —
40,143 34,350
Net Current Assets REEETME 94,246 124,069
Total Assets less Current HWEERRBEE
Liabilities 111,053 158,124
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION N
H

e PRI R

As at 31 December 2020 )X —E —F#1 - H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥TR AREFIT
Capital and Reserves EXREE
Share capital A& 7N 29 12,538 12,538
Reserves s 53,210 84,414
Total Equity RSB 65,748 96,952
Non-current Liabilities kRBAEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEE 18 2,169 4,944
Borrowings TE 26 43,121 56,228
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 15 =
45,305 61,172
111,053 158,124

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 188 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

FITR1BBEMEMGRE M BHRRIICEFTEN =
T —F-A -+ WRABERRETIE - WH T
ATHREREE

HUNG YUNG LAI
DIRECTOR
REmLE
EF
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 CONSOLIDATED
MEEZEFHR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

A
3
m
< \

EQUITY

Share-based
Share Share Statutory  Shareholder's  Translation payments  Accumulated
capital premium reserves  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
HRORER
e Wt EE EERTE RRMR EXGE  WAREE ZitEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARMTn  AR%Tn  ARMTn  ARETR  AR¥Tn  AR%Tx
MNoteg) Note b) MNote¢)
(Hita) (Hith) (iitc)
At1 January 2019 R=E-hnE-PF-H 8,661 161,445 3,613 786 5217 33,688 (163,026) 50,384
Profit and total comprehensive  AEEEFIRZERA
income for the year pick] - - - - - - 25,004 25,004
Shares issued (Note d) Bty (Wit d) 3877 19,387 - - - - - 23,264
Transaction costs attributable /TR AEEZZHA
to shares issued (Note d) (HizEd) - (1,700) - - - - - (1,700)
Lapse of share options BIREXM - - - - - (294) 204 -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-nE+=R
Si=fl 12,538 179,132 3,613 786 5217 33,304 (137,728) 96,952
Loss and total comprehensive  AEEFRRZERT
expense for the year it - - - - - - (31,204) (31,204)
Lapse of share options S BRE - - - - - (2,403) 2,403 -
At 31 December 2020 S g
S=f 12,538 179,132 3,613 786 5217 30,991 (166,529) 65,748
SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED 80

Annual Report 2020



Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEME

ERERBEX

AN

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”), share
premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and other reserves if (i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being
an enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which
are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the PRC
subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by their
respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve fund
can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be applied
in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The enterprise
expansion fund can be used for expanding the capital base of the PRC
subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

On 30 September 2017, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, being the Chairman,
executive director and controlling shareholder of the Company, waived the
balance due to him of approximately RMB786,000. The amount has been
capitalised as shareholder’s contribution.

On 21 May 2019, the Company issued shares approximately HK$26.3
million (equivalent to approximately RMB23.3 million) before expenses
by way of a rights issue of 439,080,000 shares (“Rights Share”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.06 each and on the basis of one Rights Share
for every two shares held by the qualifying shareholders. Details of the right
issue are set out in Note 29.
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J CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n'l_\ é Eﬁr % 5J2|i % 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R TEE
(Loss) profit before tax B3 A (B8 ) & A (33,907) 28,894
Adjustments for: PEE -
Finance costs REEHA 2,226 2,360
Interest income FLEWA (486) (494)
Exchange (gain) loss P& 5 (k) B8 (1,499) 1,002
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERREBITE
equipment 1,088 1,157
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (FREEETE 1,466 857
Amortisation of intangible assets A Y 5,300 3,485
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE  BENREEE
equipment 2 5
Impairment loss under expected credit  FBHAEE KB T ZREE
loss model, net of reversal on trade B MBRERESERRELD
receivables and contract assets BERMD 4,586 (720)
Written-off of inventories FEHE 55 —
Loss from waiver of trade receivable FEUWE SRR Eh i e 18 7,903 —
Loss on fair value changes of financial BARBEABRZCREE
assets at fair value through profit or N EZLHHEE
loss - 59
Operating cash flows before BEEESEHAICKERSRE
movements in working capital (13,266) 36,605
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEOEM) R (92) 90
Decrease (increase) in trade and other EUWE 5 N EMIER
receivables S (B2 0) 2,743 (2,621)
Decrease (increase) in contract assets AHEERD(EM) 1,678 (1,132)
Decrease in trade and other payables FENE 5 R E MR (3,153) (1,263)
Cash (used in) generated from ke (TR BRE
operations (12,090) 31,679
Income tax paid B ER (211) —
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM RETH(FA)B2REFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (12,301) 31,679
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Development costs paid B HEEA - (9,908)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYME  WEMRE
equipment (750) (290)
Interest received BYFIE 63 42

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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T OF CASH FLOWS
I|V_\éfﬁl$3ﬁ§§

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

2020 2019
—E-_SHE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETBHFAZRESFEE
ACTIVITIES (687) (10,151)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEFTSRIA 19,000 11,000
Advances from directors BRI 423 646
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PSSR - 23,264
Issue cost paid BT - (1,700)
Proceeds from loans from a director EEEEMEHIE - 1,494
Repayment of loans from a director EREEEENR (10,682) (12,559)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (11,000) (11,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (1,353) (1,163)
Repayment of advances from directors (BB EHARN (544) (400)
Interest paid BEAFIE (668) (588)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BMETE (TR MB2REFE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (4,824) 8,994
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH B & RIE&ZEY > R4 ) &0
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEE (17,812) 30,522
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT1 R—BA—RBZHRERHRLZEEY
JANUARY 76,170 45,648
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rt-BA=1+—HZzERERBELSE
AT 31 DECEMBER, B
represented by bank balances and cash BI#R{T4&E#A RIS 58,358 76,170
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report. Its immediate holding
company is Goldcorp Industrial Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Hung Yung Lai, who is also the
chairman and an executive director of the Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products
and provision of technical support services. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(‘IFRSS’)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards and the following amendments to IFRSs issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Definition of Material
IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in
the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSS”) (Continuea)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS
8 for the first time in the current year. The amendments
provide a new definition of material that states “information
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality
depends on the nature or magnitude of information, either
individually or in combination with other information, in the
context of the financial statements taken as a whole.

Impacts on early application of Amendment to IFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time
in the current year. The amendment introduces a new
practical expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification. The practical expedient only applies to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
Covid-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

. the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
IFRS 16 Leases if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related
lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven
or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSS”) (Continuea)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continuead)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to IFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Continuea)

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening retained profits at 1 January 2020. The Group has
benefited from rent deduction on office premise on short-
team lease. The application of the amendments in the
current year had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments!
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Phase 24

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8
Amendments to IAS 16

Definition of Accounting Estimates’
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fuffiling a
Contract?

Amendments to IFRS Standards Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2018-20202
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSS”) (Continuea)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and
IAS 8 Definition of Material (Continuea)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Except for the new and amendment to IFRSs mentioned,
the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to IFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(ii) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the
conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does not
test compliance until a later date; and
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRSS”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continuead)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (Continuead)

clarify that if a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if the
entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying |IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made
by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured
at fair values at the end of reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 16 and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of
Assets.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs are to be used to measure
fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Company:

U has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continuea)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset
(or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are classified
as held for sale when the criteria described above
are met, regardless of whether the Group will retain
a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of
their previous carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell which continue to be measured in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out
in respective sections.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Except for granting of a licence that is distinct
from other promised goods or services, control is
transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the relevant performance
obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

For granting of a licence that is distinct from other
promised goods or services, the nature of the
Group’s promise in granting a licence is a promise
to provide a right to access the Group’s intellectual
property if all of the following criteria are met:

o the contract requires, or the customer
reasonably expects, that the Group will
undertake activities that significantly affect
the intellectual property to which the
customer has rights;

o the rights granted by the licence directly
expose the customer to any positive or
negative effects of the Group’s activities;
and
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuead)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

. those activities do not result in the transfer
of a good or a service to the customer as
those activities occur.

If the criteria above are met, the Group accounts
for the promise to grant a licence as a performance
obligation satisfied over time. Otherwise, the Group
considers the grant of licence as providing the
customers the right to use the Group’s intellectual
property and the performance obligation is satisfied
at a point in time at which the licence is granted.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to

the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations (i.e. sales of software
products with maintenance services), the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a
stand-alone selling price is not directly observable,
the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group'’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the Group transferred the
associated goods or services before payments
from customers in which the Group adjusts for the
promised amount of consideration for significant
financing components, the Group applies a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. The Group
recognises interest income during the period
between the payment from customers and the
transfer of the associated goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or
services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided
by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified

good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Principal versus agent (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified good
or service by another party. In this case, the Group
does not control the specified good or service
provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative standalone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continuead)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract (Continued)

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
o an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continuead)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continuead)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continuea)

. amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
the option; and

U payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continuead)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the
lease liability, less any lease incentives receivable,
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement
of lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient
not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are
met:

o the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for
the changes applying IFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity (i.e.
RMB) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants (Continued)

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable.
Government grants relating to compensation of
expenses are deducted from the related expenses,
other government grants are presented under
“other income".

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that another IFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share-
based payments reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
with parties other than employees are measured
at the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated
reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the counterparty renders the service.
The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the services
qualify for recognition as assets).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss)
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continueq)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes.
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

] the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset during its development.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that
they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are estimated individually, when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
other than goodwiill (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established.
The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15 Revenue from contracts with customers.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash
flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

115

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

REMBRRNERELERETE

SHBEE)
32 EESHEER®
EEITHGE)

BERMNERESHEECHEEXTH
B R SRS A AR B B 0 AL A
BRARMERARBINITE - B
RN E SRR EREHEHE
EXT A EREHFHA L (HE
2)BE RO G RRREBAR
FIA(BREREKRERFE 250 F
BENKEKRERRIE  XFHK
AR R Bl (B s ) ERETIR B AR
EDFEAFE o

TREENDBENEKE

B TII G2 S AR RERE
SHRARHE -

. TREENRBEEAFER
REEARRAENRSRE
MEBEARE &

. BHGERREEERRELZ
ReERBARBINARE R
AEBEARSZHE

A TAI 2 S BAE AR
DA R E KRN
RS -

° & BE EE R B A th & R B
BHREREF/BNZER
BATHEA &

. BHGRREERRELEZ
ReERBARSINARE R
AEBERSZHE -

SR () RBBRAT
e



e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

3.2

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continuead)

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which IFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

116

3.

o)

MBBRRNBREERETE

SETBR )

3.2

EESHER®

EETA @)

EHEEE)
EMEENSBERAE 2@

ARt REERRZRAE
ABHFE - ERVRERSRE
EER - AKE R AR 2
REAM2EYEE (T EaEmikas])
SHNBEAKRERIABEZHRES
M ERAREWIFFEEER - 75
FEURET) IR BIRR B 75 ¥R 5 2 R S5 355k
EBERGRER 2 XA R
ZHARE -

EAN - {201t AT OH B SRR IR D &
FHERAC + RIZCER B 7] A A] R 1
BB AR AR BB BEM
2HWRIIRTECEREERETE
RBERAEFABRE -



BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised
cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other losses”
line item.
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial
assets (including trade and other receivables and
bank balances) and contract assets, which are
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month
ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9
(Continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

U significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.qg.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9
(Continued)

)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

. an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

REMBRRNERELERETE
B BER@#E)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued) 3.2 EESHEE®)
Financial instruments (Continued) AT EE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default (Continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when

T RE E MBI B 75 S RIS 05k
AETREN G ZEMBER ZREE
(%)
i  BOER®R
AEERR ETRMEER
HAHERBO0K « RIEARL -

a financial asset is more than 90 days past BRIFAEBEBESEAR I
due unless the Group has reasonable and AR FERERREAZENE
supportable information to demonstrate EEERHE -

that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the

(i) EERESREE
TREER AN LELD
= (EZERMEEMTARK
RensBm I EeE)EE
BHREERE RMEE
HREERENERERES
B N OI SR AT B R

(@  EITAHBRANE

issuer or the borrower; RNEAFSRE
(o)  a breach of contract, such as a b)) BREAH(MEDL
default or past due event:; BEREF) ;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons

© EFRANERARE
B 15 SR B 75 R 2 Y

relating to the borrower’s financial KBS KVIR B T M)
difficulty, having granted to the ERALHERAT
borrower a concession(s) that ERITERNER

the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the

(d)  tEFAR AT BERA AR

borrower will enter bankruptcy or EHMmPKEAR
other financial reorganisation; or 59

(e)  the disappearance of an active ) ZamEERERM
market for that financial asset % A B 7% W OB
because of financial difficulties. g0
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9
(Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over three years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9
(Continued)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
and contract assets are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group
takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the

grouping:

o Past-due status;
U Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9
(Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

(Continued)
U External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables and other receivables and
contract assets and where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if

the contractual cash flows are renegotiated or
otherwise modified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised
terms result in a substantial modification from
original terms taking into account all relevant facts
and circumstances including qualitative factors. If
qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group
considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent
different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial asset.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including borrowings, trade and
other payables, amounts due to directors and
amount due to immediate holding company are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2  Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4.

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible asset are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.
Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired.
In determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts. Furthermore, the cash flows projections,
growth rate and discount rate are subject to greater
uncertainties in the current year due to uncertainty
on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and
evolve and volatility in financial markets, including
potential disruptions in the Group's operations.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts
of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and intangible assets subject to impairment
assessment were approximately RMB11,880,000,
RMB761,000 and RMB4,166,000 (2019:
RMB12,220,000, RMB879,000 and
RMB20,956,000 respectively.)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4.
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continuea)

A2 P REM 2 EERIFR (&)

fhet 2 FREEM 2 EBRIF#)

(b)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Trade receivables and contract assets with
significant balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, for trade receivables and contract
assets which are individually insignificant or
when the Group does not have reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort to measure ECL on individual
basis, collective assessment is performed by
grouping debtors based on the Group's internal
credit ratings.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. Due to greater financial uncertainty
triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group
has increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged
pandemic could lead to increased credit default
rates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 20, 21 and 34 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

5.

REVENUE

(i)

5. SHEWA
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) PIFBEEESHHEERA
with customers
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-ZF5+-A=+—HLEFE
Sales of Provision
Sales of related of technical
software hardware support
products products services
HE SHEM R AL T
HHER BHER T ERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%®TR AR¥Tx
Sales of products HEER 6,320 2,065 -
Provision of services: REARTS
— Development and installation —RABRZERIRTE
of bank transaction software SR - — 16,595
— Outsourcing financial services ~ — &RITR PIZHIN
for bank customers BERE — - 46,788
— Development, installation —FE - R REE
and maintenance of payment A E A AR TS
software system — — 13,767
Total @t 6,320 2,065 77,150
Geographical markets HETH 5
The PRC =8 6,320 2,065 77,150
Timing of revenue recognition  $5E&E IR AR R
A point in time RF [ 24 5,866 2,065 —
Over time b8 s ] 454 - 77,150
Total et 6,320 2,065 77,150
SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

REVENUE (Continueqd) 5. S#HEWA®
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) PIREFARNEERA (&)
with customers (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE_Z-—NE+-A=1t—HIFE
Sales of Provision
Sales of related  of technical
software hardware support
products products services
HE SHE RS Rt
IFER W E SRR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT ARETT
Sales of products HEER 15,484 8,723 =
Provision of services: TR HARTS
— Development and installation — B RZERITE
of bank transaction software SR FE — - 27,721
— Outsourcing financial services ~— — AiRITE P IREESN
for bank customers B RE - — 50,759
— Development, installation —FE s TR MEE
and maintenance of payment AT AR TS
software system — — 26,988
Total @t 15,484 8,723 105,468
Geographical markets hE 5
the PRC =8| 15,484 8,723 105,468
Timing of revenue recognition &I AR R
A point in time BRI 2 15,241 8,723 =
Over time B s ] 243 — 105,468
Total @t 15,484 8,723 105,468
FHRERE (KB RBERDIAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of software products with maintenance
services (multiple performance obligations)

The Group mainly sells software products, e.g.
POS-MIS to banks and high-tech companies
directly, and revenue is recognised at a point
in time when control of software products has
transferred, being when the software products
have been delivered to customers’ specific
location and installed for use. In addition, the
Group provided subsequent maintenance service
after the installation, which is considered to be
a distinct service as it is both regularly supplied
by the Group to other customers on a stand-
alone basis and is available for customers from
other providers in the market. Transaction price
is allocated between sales of software products
and the maintenance services on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Revenue relating to the
maintenance services is recognised over time and
would be recognised as a separate performance
obligation for provision of services and included
as development, installation and maintenance of
payment software system. The transaction price
allocated to these services is recognised on a
straight line basis over the period of service.

Sales of related hardware products (revenue
recognised at one point in time)

The Group mainly sells related hardware products,
e.g. POS machines to banks and high-tech
companies directly.

For sales of related hardware products, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
delivered to customers’ specific location. The
normal credit term is 120 to 180 days upon
delivery.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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5. REVENUE (continued)

(i)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continuea)

Provision of technical support services
(revenue recognised over time)

The Group provides technical support services
to customers. Such services are recognised as
a performance obligation satisfied over time as
the Group creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for these
technical support services based on the stage of
completion of the contract using input method. A
contract asset, net of contract liability, is recognised
over the period in which the technical support
services are performed representing the Group’s
right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the
Group'’s future performance in achieving specified
milestones. The contract assets are transferred
to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. Retention receivables, are classified
as contract assets, which ranges from one to two
years from the date of the practical completion
of the support services. The relevant amount of
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
when the defect liability period expires. The defect
liability period serves as an assurance that the
technical support services performed comply with
agreed upon specifications and such assurance
cannot be purchased separately.

In some circumstances, the Group received the
advance payment which considered containing
significant financing component and accordingly
the amount of consideration is adjusted for the
effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

5. REVENUE (Continuea)

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
and the expected timing of recognising revenue are

5.

SHEWA (&)
(i) PEEEEFANHTEOEE
X5 E

R_E-_EFR-_F—-NF+=A
=t+—B RSGEERIEZEHE
HETCREKRIBEBRERL) * B
HRRE R SRR R a0 T

as follows:
Provision of technical
support services
R AL i 2 B AR IS
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Within one year —FE PR 1,341 1,724
More than one year but not more  —4ELA BT #R3E
than two years R 133 441
More than two years MELA E 108 899
1,582 3,064
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are as
follows:

1. Sales of software products
2. Sales of related hardware products
&) Provision of technical support services

No operating segments have been aggregated in arising at
the reportable segments of the Group.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHER
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

LETE

AARARTEE (A BLERRADZ
WARETERDELFEOMRAZE
£ TAERESRC RN EmBAARER
ﬁ% o

HEgms - RIRBIFR B RS 2 A F 857 &F
EE ARBEZAI2RREENIE -

—

HEEMEM
2. HEREEHTER
& TR BT SR AR

AEELEALED BT ABKAZ R

S -

D EPHEWAR K&

AEBIREERAIZ2H D FE D HERA
REGZZ W

HE_E-_EF+-A=+t—-—HLFE

Sales of Provision of

Sales of related technical

software hardware support
products products services Total

$HE SHE1ERS R
BEHER X ER% At

ARMTRE AR®BTR ARWTR AR®BTxR

External sales and total HINEE RBIHE

revenue WA

— segment revenue — D EREHE WA 6,320 2,065 77,150 85,535
SEGMENT RESULTS DEBFELE (8,751) (1,112 (21,289) (31,152)
Unallocated other income RO EREAKA 2,576
Unallocated other losses AOBLE M EE (693)
Unallocated corporate KoM

expenses FZ (2,412)
Finance costs REER (2,226)
Group’s loss before tax REBRBRFRTER (33,907)

FHRERE (KB RBERDIAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continueqd) 6. EIE NI E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DEEHEWAREE &)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-_Z-hE+=-A=+—HLEFE
Sales of  Provision of
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
HE HERR IR
HHER TEFE M SRR A&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
External sales and total HIMNEE RRIHE
revenue WA
— segment revenue — D EREHE WA 15,484 8,723 105,468 129,675
SEGMENT RESULTS DEBELE 6,994 1,362 22,535 30,891
Unallocated other income RO E AU A 3,425
Unallocated other losses RO H b EIE 973)
Unallocated corporate P VAN =
expenses X (2,089)
Finance costs REER (2,360)
Group’s profit before tax REENKRTINRF] 28,894

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

same as the Group’s accounting policies as described in
note 3. Segment results represents the profit earned/loss
incurred by each segment without allocation of finance
costs, unallocated corporate expenses, other income
and certain other losses. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating
results of each segment. No analysis of segment asset
and segment liability is presented as the CODM does
not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results are
presented.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continuead)

Other segment information

6. EEIE#E

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

Hitt2 &R

Sales of Provision of

Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
HE SHE R
HHUER BHER S ER® &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%¥TR AR®TR AR¥TxR
For the year ended 31 BE-_ZE_ZEH+—A
December 2020 =t+—HLEEE
Amounts included in the BRENTEDIBEEZ
measure of segment HIF -
results:
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - &E LB EITE
and equipment 80 26 982 1,088
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEEITE
assets 108 35 1,323 1,466
Amortisation of intangible B B
assets 392 128 4,780 5,300
Impairment losses on trade RIBRERNEKE 5
receivables and contract ERREHEERE
assets recognised in profit B8
or loss 938 307 3,556 4,801
Impairment losses on trade RIER BRI EKE S
receivables and contract R RAEHNEERE
assets reversed in profit or E518
loss (16) (5) (194) (215)
Loss from waiver of trade FEWE B IR TR
receivable 3=l - - 7,903 7,903
| NE]
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continueqd) 6. BN (E)
Other segment information (Continued) Hv &R 2
Sales of  Provision of
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
HE SHERM RS
BHED T Em SRR BFF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT AR®ETRT ARETT AREBTET
For the year ended 31 BE—T-h&E+=A
December 2019 =t+t—HILEEE
Amounts included in the BRENTEDBEEZ
measure of segment HIE
results:
Depreciation of property, plant  #1% - B R BEITE
and equipment 138 78 941 1,157
Depreciation of right-of-use (£ RS EITE
assets 102 58 697 857
Amortisation of intangible BT A A
assets 416 234 2,835 3,485
Impairment losses on trade RERERNEWKE S
receivables and contract AR AEHNEERE
assets recognised in profit B8
or loss 24 14 165 203
Impairment losses on trade RIBREEINEKE 5
receivables and contract ERRAENEERE
assets reversed in profit or E518
loss (110) 62) (751) (923)

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020 138



OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continuead)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is all
generated from customers located in the PRC.

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC
by location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers from sales of software products,
related hardware products, provision of technical support
services of the corresponding years contributing over 10%
of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

ENE ()

B AR
FEERENRES 2 HERAKE R E
BES -

AEERAIERDEEREEMELE D
BN BEERA -

IREFEE

AEBEKREESNEF < HERTER - 8
RAE 1 B mn R IR BT SR BRI < A B
RIBBARHE10%MT -

2020 2019

—E-SF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREBFT

Customer A =ZEH 41,204 68,058
Customer B BEZ 11,142 N/A* ANiE A
* The corresponding customer did not constitute over 10% of total * ZEFRIARFE I T A E F A5 E WA

revenue of the Group in the respective year.

OTHER LOSSES

Z10% °

Hit &8

2020 2019
—E-EH —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Exchange loss i S8 (666) (895)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HeEME - MEREE
and equipment E518 3] (5)
Loss from waliver of trade ERE ZFER R
receivable (Note) 518 (BI=E) (7,903) —
Loss on fair value changes of BARBABRZEH
financial assets at FVTPL BENAESENER — (59)
Others Hftb (25) (14)
(8,596) (973)

Note: A service contract with a customer was terminated under mutual
agreement and a loss from waiver of trade receivable arising from
sales of software products and provision of technical support
services of approximately RMB7,903,000 was recognised during
year ended 31 December 2020.
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % —E — F# = =+1—HIFFZF

8.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

FINANCE COSTS 8. ®EEH
2020 2019
—E-SE —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 638 563
Interest on loans from a director EEEEZFE 1,558 1,772
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZHE 30 25
2,226 2,360
INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE) 9. FrEfHER (BX)
2020 2019
—EEF —ZT—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREFIT
PRC enterprise income tax (‘EIT”) B 2FER([DEMER])
— Current year —RFE - (139)
— Underprovision in respective —BAFEEETE
prior years (72) _
(72) (139)
Deferred taxation (Note 18) PEERTE(MI7E18)
— Current year —REE 2,775 (3,751)
2,703 (3,890)

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited
(“Singlee Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
established in Hangzhou, the PRC, with statutory tax rate
of 25%. Singlee Technology is regarded as a High and
New Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance
Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang
Municipality and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State
Administration of Taxation (collectively referred as the “local
tax authorities”) and is therefore entitled to 15% preferential
tax rate for the PRC EIT for three years each starting from
2013. During the year ended 31 December 2019, its High
and New Technology Enterprise status was extended
by the local tax authorities for three more years to 2022.
Accordingly, the tax rate for Singlee Technology is 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
the applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software
Company Limited (“Singlee Software”), and Xin Yintong
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xin YinTong”) is 25% for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE)
(Continued)

No provision for PRC EIT during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: provision for PRC EIT amounting
to RMB139,000 from Xin YinTong).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2018 onwards, enterprises
engage in research and development activities are entitled
to claim 175% of the research and development expenses
soO incurred in a year as tax deductible expenses in
determining its tax assessable profits for that year ("Super
Deduction"). Singlee Technology has claimed such Super
Deduction in ascertaining its tax assessable profits for both
years.

The tax (credit) charge for the year is reconciled to the (loss)
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

FrgBiER (Fx) @)

BE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HLEFE "
WERPECEMSHRERF (L
FHBEBNTECEMSHBEGARE
139,0007T) °

AN AREBREBE-_ZT_EFK_T—H
F+_A=+BHIEFETERBTEES
ﬁﬁ%#ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
B -

R IZ ARGRBABEMTE -F
—N\FRERH—IABEK - {EEHEEH
F) b 56 8 R 1 7B 7E L F 2 B AR M 7B S
ZEEELMEFASA75% BIESRH
RS2 ([HERFRIEH ) o FARH N EE E
P I 7 52 ) AR S 1 B 2 BRSRER BRI AN ©

AEFHRBAST HEGABE A M2EK
R BRT AT (EHR ) EH Z SRR T -

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
(Loss) profit before tax B Al (B8 ) a4 (33,907) 28,894
Tax at enterprise income tax rate at IR EFMSEHHIE15% (ZF
15% (2019: 15%) (Note) — N 15% )82 BiE
(H1z2) (5,086) 4,334
Tax effect of income not taxable for A FRFIUL A Z TG =2 2
tax purpose (2,083) (140)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible  NA]FIF F S 72 T s 28
for tax purpose 4,314 1,019
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRIBBHE M E
recognised 1,046 250
Effect of Super Deduction BREENNEE (966) (1,173
Utilisation of tax losses previously not & FiB1E kiR 2 FiIEE 1B
recognised - (297)
Underprovision in respect of prior BAEFEEBRETE
years 72 _
Others Hith - (103)
Tax (credit) charge for the year REZHIAER) X H (2,703) 3,890
Note:  Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) represents the Htat - BERAEHREERI5% (ZE—NE : 15%) A

relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of
the Company which generates majority of the Group’s assessable

profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

10. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10.

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging
(crediting) the following items:

XEE(BR), BT
AEE(ER)SEFEMERGIA) TS
18 :

2020 2019
223 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT

Salaries, wages and other staff e IEREMET

benefits reys| 66,914 54174
Retirement benefit schemes R FET &3k

contributions 7,420 11,265
Total staff costs (Note 1) B IR A%zE (M) 74,334 65,439
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERREBTE

equipment 1,088 1,157
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,466 857
Amortisation of intangible assets B B 5,300 3,485
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A & 1,115 1,443
Research costs recognised as an ERBRY 2HEEA

expense (included in cost of sales) (BEFASHERA) 9,388 1,742
Impairment losses recognised on FEWE SRR REHX

trade receivables and contract BERRRRERIE

assets 4,801 203
Impairment losses reversal on trade  FEWE ZBEK RS NEE

receivables and contract assets RH R E B TR (215) (923)
Written-off of inventories FEM 55 —
Cost of inventories recognised as an RERIZFE

expense (D% 1,539 6,219
Interest income FEUA (486) (494)
Government grants (Note 2) BT a0 (HfsE2) (1,652) (2,614)
Notes: Hiat -
1. Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs. 1. EEMESEFTALIMB T ©
2. During the current year, the Group recognised government grants 2 RAFE AEEERBTHBEARE

approximately of RMB747,000 in respect of Covid-19-related
subsidies from government authorities in relation for employment
support in Hong Kong and the PRC. The remaining mainly
represented cash received from unconditional grants by local
government to encourage the business operations in the PRC.
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11.

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11. EERESTHAEEM
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, BIEFEANO TR LR AGHEGFARE -
disclosed pursuant to applicable Listing Rules and CO, is AEBAFEZEERTZEITHA BFHM
as follow: R
2020
—ECEF
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and schemes
Fees bonuses contributions Total
e BHKER
Hue AR TEAL FHEIHR &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR AR®TR ARBTR AR¥TxR

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERNIE S A - 112 6 118
Mr. Cui Jian FEEER A — 443 6 449
Mr. Hung Ying ARBSTE - 744 6 750
Mr. Lin Xue Xin MBI 112 603 44 759
Subtotal et 112 1,902 62 2,076
Independent non- B EHIT

executive directors =

Mr. Pao Ping Wing THIRER S 112 - - 112
Mr. Thomas Tam HREE LA 112 — — 112
Mr. Lo King Man ESXiE 112 - - 112
Subtotal /e 336 — — 336
Total HBET 2,412

SR (KB R HERAT
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

11.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11. EENEETHAESFM&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
2019
—E—NF
Salaries Retirement
allowances benefit
and schemes
Fees bonuses  contributions Total
e BIREF
wE AR RIEAD AR BFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBT T AREBT T ARETTT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai AERbIE S A — 106 5 111
Mr. Cui Jian R — 437 5 442
Mr. Hung Ying RS A — 565 5 570
Mr. Lin Xue Xin WEF ST E 106 479 63 648
Subtotal INEt 106 1,587 78 1,771
Independent non- B IEHAT
executive directors BE=E
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR 106 — — 106
Mr. Thomas Tam REE LA 106 = — 106
Mr. Lo King Man BERXSTE 106 — — 106
Subtotal /NEF 318 - - 318
Total A=t 2,089

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director
or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.
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12.

13.

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12. EEBEEHFMES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the FRAEBRTERRFNEERIE=RE
year included three directors (2019: two directors), details F(ZZ-NF -MEBES)  BEHHE
of whose remuneration are set out in note 11 above. HNR EXMFE - FRBTITMEZ(ZZE—N
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining F o ZR)WIEARAEFTRITHRAK AR
two (2019: three) highest paid employees who are neither SHEMATHFEEEY T -
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Salaries and other benefits $e REMER 1,191 1,928
Retirement benefit schemes RIREAE B R
contributions 48 118
1,239 2,046
Their emoluments were individually within the Hong Kong BEMER 2 e N TR A #1,000,0007T 2
dollar (“HK$”)1,000,000 band. EEMN o
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no BHE T _ZEFR_ZT—NF+=HA
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest —+—HLEFE  FAEEHMERREERS
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining FALT I EMFMIEARSI EMAARE
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. FIMAREBERE 2 M ERE R AR
%2 #1E -
DIVIDEND 13. KRE

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during 2020, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2019:nil).
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

(Loss) earnings figures are calculated as follows:

B (E5E) W&

ARREE ANEIEGRER NS (FR)
W TR T BB E

(BB, WEBEAELNT -

2020 2019
—E-SF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
(Loss) profit for the year attributable A2 &l#EHE A BETE SR
to owners of the Company for the HANEE (BB WEE
purposes of basic and diluted (loss) (GER (8 )@ T
earnings per share (31,204) 25,004
2020 2019
bt 222 —E-NF
’000 000
T T
Number of shares RHBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary FR{EsT EEAREA (EE ) Uiz
shares for the purpose of basic 2 @I AN 8
(loss) earnings per share 1,317,240 1,191,973
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EEETLER Y
shares 7
— Share options — g - 1,491
Weighted average number of ordinary Fl{Es+ & & A ES (818 ) W2
shares for the purpose of diluted 2 AN RE S £
(loss) earnings per share 1,317,240 1,193,464

The computation of diluted loss per share for year ended
31 December 2020 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options since their assumed
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share.

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2019 does not assume the
exercise of 2010 January Option, 2010 August Option,
2011 February Option, 2015 May Option and 2017 April
Option (as defined in note 30) because the exercise prices
of those options were higher than the average market
prices for 2019.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

15. W% - BEKKE

Computer
Owned Leasehold and related Motor
properties Improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE EK
BENE MEsE HERE L) a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR%ETR AR%TR AR®ETR ARETR ARETR
COST R
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 12,402 3,861 7,403 1,498 25,164
Additions 0 - 21 266 3 290
Disposals HE - - - (95) (95)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-h&
+-A=t+—H 12,402 3,882 7,669 1,406 25,359
Additions 0 339 - 411 — 750
Disposals = - - 22) ®) 27)
At 31 December 2020 NZZE-EF
+-A=+—H 12,741 3,882 8,058 1,401 26,082
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—A—H 1,667 3,321 6,192 892 12,072
Provided for the year NERE 559 164 312 122 1,157
Eliminated on disposals HERK - - - (90) (90)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE
+-A=+—H 2,226 3,485 6,504 924 13,139
Provided for the year NERE 572 86 309 121 1,088
Eliminated on disposals HERIK - - (20) ) (25)
At 31 December 2020 NZZE-THF
+-A=1+—H 2,798 3,571 6,793 1,040 14,202
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 NZZE-EHF
+-B=1+-H 9,943 311 1,265 361 11,880
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-hE
+-A=t+—~H 10,176 397 1,165 482 12,220
FHRERE (KB RBERDIAE
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERFZEZ)
(Continued)
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of EREERYE  BELXREEB 2H
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful SO A SF HAN DA B A0 HR T 51) 6 R4 85
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual HRAR - WE s REMETRISRER
value, using straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:
Owned properties Over the shorter of the term BEWE TS F I 204 (LAKE
of lease or 20 years ER%E)
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the term HEMHERE FAEFHHSFE (ABE
of lease or 5 years EHRYE)
Computer and related 20% — 30% B RAABERE 20% —30%
equipment
Motor vehicles 10% — 20% B 10% —20%
The owned properties are situated on leasehold land in the ZEBEVEMRTREAMHEE + 1
PRC and held under medium-term lease. £ BRPEEERE -
The Group has pledged owned properties with a net book AEBBEEFREEN AR, 448,000
value of approximated RMB9,448,000 (31 December T(ZE—NAFE+-A=+—8: ARK
2019: RMB9,992,000) to secure borrowings granted to 9,992,0000 ) METEEWE  EAKRT
the Group (see note 26). AEBEERNEMR(RKITE26) ©
16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. FHEELE
Leased properties
HEWE
RMB’000
AREEFTT
As at 31 December 2020 R=-B-EF+=-H=+—H
Carrying amount BRT{E 761
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZB-hAE+=-A=+—H
Carrying amount BRMEE 879
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_E—_EF+-A=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge WES 1,466
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E—NE+=-BA=1+—HILEE
Depreciation charge WES 857
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16.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continueq)

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

16. ERAEEE#®)

2020 2019

—E_EH —E—hNF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Expense relating to short-term leases Ed58 BifA E A RIS H 1,571 2,413
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHER 2,954 3,601
Additions to right-of-use assets % (s A E 1,348 1,369

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of a half to two years without extension and termination
options. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
offices premises. As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio
of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in
this note.
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e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

17.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. EFREE

Development

costs
HRER
RMB’000
AREFIT
cosT R
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HF—H 29,795
Additions A0 9,903
At 31 December 2019 N-—ZE—-—hFE+=-_A=+—H 39,698
Reclassified as held for sale BN EABELRE (18,857)
At 31 December 2020 N_E-_EF+_-_A=1+—H 20,841
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2019 —T—hF—H—H 15,257
Amortisation for the year NG 3,485
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hhF+_A=+—H 18,742
Amortisation for the year A 5,300
Reclassified as held for sale ENOBEARELE (7,367)
At 31 December 2020 R-EBE-_FEF+-_A=+—H 16,675
CARRYING VALUES BRMEE
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=+—H 4,166
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NF+=-_A=+—H 20,956

Development costs are internally generated and have finite

useful lives of 5 years, which are amortised on a straight- SEREG o

line basis.
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18.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

18. EEHRAKE

EAMBARKRZIBEMME - HTE
ERBEENBBDHEE - TXRMY

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the s B ARIERIB LR DT ¢
analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:
2020 2019
—E-SF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE (2,169) (4,944)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and
assets recognised and movements thereon during current
and prior years:

AT BRAEE FBEFE D ERNENRERA
BENEENNREES)

Temporary
difference
Development Tax onrevenue
costs losses  recognition Others Total
WHERZ
HRER BBEE ERER Hits @st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR ARETR AR®BTR AR%TR
At 1 January 2019 NZTE—NF
—H—H (1,865) 1,696 (637) (487) (1,193)
Charge to profit orloss s+ A8&8 (1,022) (1,696) (805) (228) (3,751)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=-A=+—H (2,887) - (1,342) (715) (4,944)
Credit to profit or loss PNt 735 - 1,342 698 2,775
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF
+=-A=+—8 (2,152) - - 17 (2,169)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB10,705,000 (2019:
RMB8,518,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately RMB10,705,000 (2019: RMB8,518,000)
of such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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18. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 18. EZEHIEBEEE (&)

The unused tax losses will expire in the following years:

ARREFZARPARBBHBRBMANT

2020 2019

—BCRHE —T-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

2020 —E-FE N/A REH 5,502

2021 —E-—F 1,286 1,348

2022 —E-F - —

2023 —E-=HF - _

2024 —EPF 2,446 1,668

2025 —E-RF 6,973 —

Total unused tax losses RENRR AR 10,705 8,518
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BAARBEABRZEHMEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets designated at FVTPL:

BERBAAEMABSEZERMEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hnF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTTT
Investments in unlisted fund, at fair FEFHELEE R AAE
value 170 181

The unlisted fund is denominated in United State dollar
(“US$”) and the investment objective of the fund is to
achieve capital appreciation through investing in securities,
ownership interest and private equity investments
offered publicly or privately and in relation to energy and
environmental protection business.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EWE G REAMERR
2020 2019
—E_EH —E—hNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Trade receivables JEWE S ER TR
— contracts with customers —BFEE4 27,697 72,665
Less: allowance for credit losses o EEEAEE (836) (472
26,861 72,193
Other receivables, prepayments HabfEUWBRTR « AT RIE
and deposits Kize
Deposits paid to customers BEfRFZRE 4,429 3,459
Advances to staff EEEE=EN 4,293 1,947
Other tax recoverable AT YR Bl & A 5 T8 120 702
Others Hib 2,494 1,260
11,336 7,368
Total trade and other receivables TEWE 5 N EMER 4Bt 38,197 79,561

The normal credit term is 120 to 180 days upon delivery or
service provided.

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from
contracts with customers amounted to approximately
RMB67,319,000.

On 30 December 2020, trade receivables amount to
approximately RMB25,308,000, net of allowance for credit
loss of RMB489,000, has been reclassified as held for
sale. Details of the assets/liabilities held for sale are set out
in note 23.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net
of allowance for credit losses presented based on the
invoice dates:

—REEHR SN HRHIRB R 120E180
% o

RZE—hFE—HA—H RKEEFALH
U E 5 ER A AR 67,319,0007T °

RZEBE-FF+-_A=1+H " EKEZESE
(KR EBLEE AR25,308,0007T
%) AR 489,000 E#H DB AFEL
% c BB EHEEE/ BB ZFBHNHK
FF23 °

AT TS 5 8 (TR EE R K& E
BINEZR BB D 2 BRI DT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREETTT

0-120 days 0& 120k 17,803 42,486
121-180 days 1212180k 151 3,304
181-365 days 181£365k 1,596 10,645
Over 365 days 365KA 7,311 15,758
26,861 72,193
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20.

21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EWEZREMERF &)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade R-ZE_ZTF+_A=+—H ' x&H
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying HMEKRESRAEHRBEREDEEAA
amount of RMB7,508,000 (2019: RMB21,081,000) which R#7,508,000 (= —F : AR
are past due 90 days or more as the reporting date and 21,081,000 T ) HyfEURBR X - IMiRE BHE
are not considered as in default as most of the debtors are BHIQOK T A | - AR KZ BEIFA BB
banks with strong financial position and high credit ratings BARRRT B EEFTRSHRITRZER
and the amounts are still considered fully recoverable. TR ER] BEULE] - TR BEL -
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other FEU B 5 & H b BR FURE 5T 1 5 15 St
receivables are set out in note 34. 5134 ©
CONTRACT ASSETS 21. SHEE
2020 2019
—B-EF —T-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET T
Retention receivable ERERE 583 2,261

As at 1 January 2019, contract assets amounted to
approximately RMB1,129,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right
to consideration for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.

The Group typically agrees to a retention period ranging
from one to two years for 5% to 10% of the contract value.
This amount is included in contract assets until the end of
the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to this final
payment is conditional during retention period. The Group
typically transfer contract assets into trade receivables at
the end of retention period. The Group classifies these
contract assets as current because the Group expects to
realise them in its normal operating cycle.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets are
set out in note 34.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED

Annual Report 2020

154

R-ZZ—NF—A—H AHEEAAR
51 129,0007T °

BHEETEYRAKEMRE TR EHAR
HAZERM TREMKENEN - BR%
FRNAREBRRELNBIEE - OB
EEZERNRREGRIHEBRERKE

AEEFRHBENRERANTF —EMF > B
BHBEENSN E10% - ZL BT AEHE
E G BEERIFHER  REASREBEUE
% AR B SREOAE R A R IR A 15T -
AEE RO FRERAERSHENHEES
BRERUBEZIER - ARERZEFANE
ENBR/RBEE ARAKEEHN
H-REBRPANERLETEE -

BRBEERE S ISENHEESS -



22.

23.

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22, WITHEBREAS
The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise bank RZE-_EF+_A=+—0 x&EEZ
balances which carry interest at prevailing market saving RITEHKEBESBEFAKRBRITMESF
rates ranging from 0.001% to 0.35% (2019: 0.001% to FHEFR0.001EE0.35E (- — N4 :
0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2020. 0.001[EZ=0.35[F )5t B 2 RITHER ©
Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash of REBEABEAARE24,000T RN AR
approximately RMB24,000 and RMB13,416,000 (2019: 13,416,000 ( —ZE— h.F : AR¥26,000
RMB26,000 and RMB26,867,000) were denominated in TR AR ¥26,867,0007T) 2 & T IRIT 44
US$ and HKS$, respectively. KR e T RIRFET AT E
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group BE_ZT-_FTFT-_A=1T—HLHFE -
performed impairment assessment on bank balances AEBBITEBETRER S @ &w5
and concluded that the probability of defaults of the HFHBTENNAIGEERS @ BILHE
counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly, no SR EERAEE -
allowance for credit losses is provided.
DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 23. HEHENLHEEH
On 30 December 2020, the directors of the Company MN-ZE-EF+-_FA=+H ARAAES
resolved to dispose of one of the Group’s service lines REHEAEEHEF —(FKEERMHERR
under sales of software products and provision of technical RERM Y ERG (AR N T EETE
support services, i.e. development and installation of bank ERFEUHFINRBE  FNBEBRESR
transaction software, by the way of transferring certain TEERBRERGITN IO ER A
assets and liabilities to a newly established subsidiary and WiHZH B AR MR EERLINBE R
transferring the equity interest of this subsidiary to external (ft3r38) - HBHZLZEE A THEITE
vender (note 38). Negotiations with several interested e ZRERENREERAGTERN+=
parties have subsequently taken place. The assets and BEAREE  WEESBEAFELENH
liabilities attributable to the service line, which is expected EEE BREREUBERRAERAPOFEET
to be sold within twelve months, have been classified as a (RTX) - o 2Hm s - ZIRIGLZET
disposal group held for sale and are presented separately AN E § & B E S MR 2 BT AR A%
in the consolidated statement of financial position (see A o
below). The service line is included in the Group’s sales
of software products and provision of technical support
services for segment reporting purposes.
The major classes of assets and liabilities of the service SEAFELHENRESENEEREEZ
line classified as held for sale are as follows: FZHERIWT -
2020
—B-EF
RMB’000
ARMT T
Intangible assets | EE 11,490
Trade receivable FEUE ZBR TR 25,797
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEREE (489)
Total assets classified as held for sale DI AFIEEENEEE 36,798
Trade and other payable BB 5 R EMRR 2,193
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DHEEFEHENARE 2,193
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. BENEZKEAMRR

2020 2019

—ECEF —B-NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBETTT

Trade payables ERE SRR 2,355 3,305
Payroll payables AT B: T 35 B 5,320 5,056
Other PRC tax payables R HALB R FIE 2,088 3,407
Employee reimbursement payable  fEf}E B R 5,287 4,963
Accruals FEstE A 173 169
Others Hi 961 3,814
Total #Et 16,184 20,714

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of

AT HmEHRENESRRAZRZAH

trade payables at the end of the reporting period: gl BRE AT
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARKETTT
Within 90 days 90KIAA 1,296 2,180
91-180 days 912180k 12 —
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 68 44
Over 365 days 365KIA £ 979 1,081
2,355 3,305

The range of credit period on purchases of goods is

around 120 to 180 days.

Trade and other payables of approximately RMB1,059,000
(2019: RMB1,022,000) were denominated in HK$.

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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BORROWINGS 26.
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Unsecured loans from a director (Note i) #EEXIHZZ(EE (MizEi) 44,789 57,471
Secured bank borrowings (Note ii) BIEFRITEE (Fsxi) 15,000 11,000
Unsecured bank borrowings (Note ii) IR TEE (MYEE) 4,000 —
63,789 68,471
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETTT
Carrying amount of the above borrowings & ERIBREEE TEE ¢
are repayable:
Within one year —FLAR 20,668 12,243
Within a period of more than one year ~ —4F LA H{E RN RIBRE
but not exceeding two years 10,429 8,200
Within a period of more than two years  RIEELA BT ERB A E
but not exceeding five years 1,460 15,586
Within a period of more than five years R LA E 31,232 32,442
63,789 68,471
Less: Amounts due within one year B AARBEER —FR
shown under current liabilities EI|8f 2 5RIE (20,668) (12,243)
Amounts shown under non-current FIASERBBEZKIE
liabilities 43,121 56,228
Notes:

(i) The exposure of the Group’s loans from a director and the

AEBMERRUEFNRBREQDHAM

contractual maturity dates are as follows: T8
2020 2019
—EoBE —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBFIT
Within one year —FELAR 1,668 1,243
Between one to two years —EMFE 10,429 8,200
Between two to five years MERF 1,460 15,586
More than five years hF% 31,232 32,442
44,789 57,471
157 FREG(RB)RBERAT
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26. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

The exposure of the Group’s loans from a director and the
contractual maturity dates are as follows: (Continued)

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s Loans from a
director are as follows:

26. BE#
Bz - @)

0)

AEBMERRRERNRBREQDHA M
T &)

AEEERR{EFOERFIREENT

2020 2019
TECEE —T-NF

Effective interest rate: BRRAE
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 2.68% — 3.38% 2.68% — 3.38%

The weighted average effective interest rate on loans from a
director is 2.83% (2019: 2.91%).

The loans from a director of approximately RMB43,854,000 (2019:
RMB52,158,000) are denominated in HK$, other borrowings are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group
entity.

The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings and the contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

(i)

BEEEZMETFHERAE R2.83E(=F
—hE& :2918) »

EEEEHARYAL3,854,000(=ZF—N

F : AR¥52,158,0007T ) LAPS TTAHE + EAth
EETAEEEEER 2 EHaHE -

FAREEXEENERTXBELT

2020 2019
—B-EF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMBFIT
Fixed-rate bank borrowings: ELRITHEE -
Within one year —FR 19,000 11,000

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

REBEBTEENERFR(LASREOF
)T

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF

Effective interest rate: B
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEE 4.35% 4.80%

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank
borrowings is 4.35% (2019: 4.80%).

The owned properties with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB9,448,000 (2019: RMB9,992,000) have been pledged
to secure bank borrowings of RMB15,000,000 (2019:
RMB11,000,000).
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LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAE
2020 2019
—E_EH —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETIT
Lease liabilities payable EAEEEE
Within one year —FR 439 459
Within a period of more than one R —FEBRZRRE
year but not exceeding two HARI A
years 15 —
454 459
Less: Amount due for settlement g8 PM2{E A B B E R
with 12 months shown under FIE - S BRREEE
current liabilities (439) (459)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 12 R BRE T R FR0R -
12 months shown under non- S AEREEE
current liabilities 15 —

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities is 6% (2019: 6%).

AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE 28.

HOLDING COMPANY

The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R
Number of shares Amount Amount
RAEE nE »E
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“B-%f -T-NF ZB-8E -—I-NF BB —F-nf
'000 ‘000 HKD000 HKD'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
i T TiEn Titn AREFRT ARETR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ BREEC.01B T2 L&k
Authorised: iyl
At 1 January and 31 December W=A—BRkt+=-FA=+—H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fuly paid: BEIRAR :
At 1 January w—R—8 1,317,240 878,160 13,173 8,782 12,538 8,661
Shares issued Bk - 439,080 - 4,391 - 3,877
At 31 December Rt+-A=t-H 1,317,240 1,317,240 13,173 13,173 12,538 12,538

On 21 May 2019, the Company issued shares
approximately HK$26.3 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB23.3 million) before expenses by way of a rights
issue of 439,080,000 shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.06 each and on the basis of one Rights Share for
every two shares held by the qualifying shareholders. The
net proceeds of the rights issue, is approximately HK$24.4
million (equivalent to approximately RMB21.6 million). The
Company used the net proceeds from the rights issue for
the Company’s general working capital purpose.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in
all aspects.
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30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date and have come to its expiration. All other respects of
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Scheme prior to
such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until expiry of
the said options. As a result, a new share option scheme
which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the “New
Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry of the
Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are
same with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 February 2011 (the “SGM”), the New
Scheme mandate limit was refreshed so that the Company
was authorised to grant share options under the New
Scheme for subscription of up to a total of 81,184,000
shares, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of the SGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 May 2016 (the “AGM”), the scheme
mandate limit under the share option scheme of the
Company was refreshed again so that the Company
was authorised to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the
refreshed mandate limit, representing approximately 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the AGM. The aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options that may be
granted under the refreshed mandate limit and upon the
exercise of the outstanding options previously granted is
not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares in issue at any
point of time.
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URGDAERNRRS
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B AR ARREERIKE BB 31T
A& ZR#910% o

BERENR_—_ZE—RERA+—BETH
AARRERBFAS([RRBFAE]) £
BRMTRAZE  ARABREETH
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30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, the number of ordinary shares
remained outstanding in respect of which options had
been granted on 28 February 2011 (“2011 February
Option”), 24 June 2013 (“2013 June Option”) , 15 May
2015 (“2015 May Option”) and 7 April 2017 (“2017 April
Option”) is 198,276,000 (2019: 216,070,000), representing
15% of the total ordinary shares of the Company (2019:
16%) in issue at the end of the reporting period.

Options shall be exercised in the following manner:

Options granted to directors and employees on 19
January 2010 and 16 August 2010

. 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon
6-months of the date of grant

. Additional 10% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of
grant

o Additional 35% of the options shall become

exercisable upon the second anniversary of the
date of grant

o Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date
of grant

Options granted to directors on 28 February 2011

. 50% of the options shall become exercisable on
the date of grant

. Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 9 January 2012

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011

. 50% of the options shall become exercisable on
the date of grant

. Additional 50% of the options shall become
exercisable after 12 January 2012
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DR BERNRRZ (#)

AR ZBREGEBRE 82

R-ZZE-ZTFE+_A=+—0 " ®HBER
—F——F A+ NB(ZE—F=
AER#E])  —2—=F,-A=-1+WA
(Z=2—=FAEkE])  —T—A2F
AA+REB(ZE—RFERAEREDR
—T—+t+FWMALtB([ZE—tFUAE
REAE DR EEDARITE ZBRE - TSR
2 EEARE B £198,276,0000% (—ZE— AN,
£ : 216,070,0008%) © (5 AR B RRE
XE%G%@%%@Z%%.:Efni:
16%) ©

BERRAEZB IR DA N R T(E
R-BE—-ZSF—A+HABERZZT—ZFFN

AT BERTESERESNERE
. 5% Z R BN B R HINE A &
A TIT6E

. BN 0% KB AR
BEER TIT(E

\\\\

R B —

C F4N35% H)EAAE AN & i A HiR
BFRAITITE
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. URMAERNSRRS @)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Options granted to directors and employees on 24 R-EBE-—=Z=FXA-1THHEBEFEERE

June 2013 B ERE

. 50% of the options shall become exercisable on . 50% 2 FERR AR 5% i B BRfE AT T
the date of grant 1118

. Additional 50% of the options shall become . FINO0% KB AR BEZEN — T — 04
exercisable after 23 June 2014 NAZT=BEAFIIE

Options granted to directors and employees on 15 R-E-RFHEA+EARTEERES

May 2015 ZHBRE

. 50% of the options shall become exercisable on . 50% 2 FERR AR 5% I B BRfE AT T
the date of grant 1118

o Additional 50% of the options shall become . EING0% MBERR AR —F — R F
exercisable after 14 May 2016 A+ B TR A TITE

Options granted to directors, employees and R-EBE—+tFENBLtHBRFEES EER

consultants on 7 April 2017 Bz R

. 50% of the options shall become exercisable on . 50% 2 FERR#EZE R 5 i B BRfE AT T
the date of grant 11fE

o Additional 50% of the options shall become . EHNE0% MR AR — 2 — \F
exercisable after 6 April 2018 P9 AN B %A TITE

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise RIEZTEI R FETE  1TEEBEARARE

price is determined by the directors of the Company, EEET - BTMMER () AR RRONE D

and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price BEI 2 W i(E - (i) R R BT L B HR

of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the AL B2 FHKTE R (i) KA FKR

average closing price of the shares for the five business HBZEERZESE °

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company’s share.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. PR 2 BEARAE T S WEEN ZRIE -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share options BE_Z-_TEF+_A=1+—BIEE -

of 17,794,000 (2019: 3,431,000) were lapsed and expired. 17,794,000 BERED KU LB (==

— N4 : 3,431,00017)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: BB E 2 BRI 2 s EIB I ¢

Options granted to directors and employees on 19 R-BE—ZFEF—BFB+hBAE=ZZFE—ZFFN

January 2010 and 16 August 2010 B+AARTEERESHERE

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  Fair value at grant date

BREER R AH BEH Cigid e REHAHZARE

2010 January Option 19.01.2010  19.01.2010t0 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330

“T-SF-AERE 19.01.2010  19.01.2010£18.01.2013 19.07.2010%18.01.2020 0.200% 1T 0.1330/ 7T,

2010 August Option 16.08.2010  16.08.2010 t0 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289

“E-TF)\ BERE 16.08.2010  16.08.2010%£15.08.2013  16.02.2011%15.08.2020 0.840% T 0.52897% T
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. URGDAEERNRRZ &)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Option granted to directors and employees on 28

R-B-——F_A-+N\BRTESEKE

February 2011 Bz BRAE

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  Fair value at grant date
BREER REAH FEH g e REHABZAAE
2011 February Option

“T——F-ABERE

Grant to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3308
KTE% 28.02.2011 T 28.02.2011 = 09.01.2021 0.73058 7T 0.3308/8 7T

Grant to directors 28.02.2011  28.02.2011t0 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 to 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3417
BTEE 28.02.2011  28.02.2011 £ 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 Z 09.01.2021 0.730% 7T 03417

Grant to employees 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3366
RETEE 28.02.2011 @ 28.02.2011 Z 12.01.2021 0.714% 7T 0.33667% T,

Grant to employees 28.02.2011  28.02.2011t0 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3417
KTEE 28.02.2011  28.02.2011 £ 12,01.2012 13.01.2012 % 12.01.2021 0.714% 7T 0347
Option granted to directors and employees on 24 R-EB-—=ZFXAA-THEEFESERE
June 2013 BEBRE

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  Fair value at grant date
BREER Rt A8 BEH fT1E8 8 RRLEAHZAAE
2013 June Option

“E-=FAEE

Grant to directors 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
RYE=S 24,06.2013 NEA 24.06.2013 Z 23.06.2023 0112257t 0.05063% 7T

Grant to directors 24,06.2013  24.06.2013 10 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
KTE% 24.06.2013  24.06.2013 Z 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 Z 23.06.2023 0.1122 7T 0.0522% 7T

Grant to employees 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
KTES 24,06.2013 TaH 24.06.2013 Z 23.06.2023 0.112255 7 0.0506/8 7T

Grant to employees 24,06.2013  24.06.2013 10 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
BETEE 24062013 24.06.2013 & 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 % 23.06.2023 0.1122%7¢ 0.05223% 1

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. URHBAEBRNARRE &)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Option granted to directors and employees on 15 R-B-—HREFA+TEAEBEFEEREE

May 2015 pd 1Y

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  Fair value at grant date

BRESER RS FEH 8 i@ RREAHZAAE

2015 May Option

“E-RERABRE

Grant to a director 15.06.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2648

BKTES 15.05.2015 TEH 15.05.2015 % 14.05.2025 043387 0.26483% T

Grant to a director 15.05.2015  15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2694

BRTEE 16.05.2015  15.05.2015 & 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 & 14.05.2025 04357 0.26947% 71,

Grant to employees 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2243

ETEE 15.05.2015 NEA 15.05.2015 £ 14.05.2025 043571 0.22433% 7T,

Grant to employees 15.05.2015  15.05.2015 10 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2372

KETEE 15.06.2015  15.05.2015 % 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 & 14.05.2025 0.43% 7T 0.2372% 7T,

Option granted to directors, employees and N-ZEBE—ttENAtLtHEFEE  EER

consultants on 7 April 2017 BEER 2 BB AR Rt

Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price  Fair value at grant date

BREER RS BEH Cgd e RRLEAHZAAE

2017 April Option

T -tFNABRE

Grant to a director 07.04.2017 N/A 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0865

RYE=S 07.04.2017 NEA 07.04.2017 2z 06.04.2027 0.1820% ¢ 0.0865/% 7T

Grant to a director 07.04.2017  07.04.2017 t0 06.04.2018 07.04.2018 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0949

KTES 07.04.2017  07.04.2017 Z 06.04.2018 07.04.2018 Z 06.04.2027 0.1820/ 7T 0.094938 7T

Grant to employeesand ~ 07.04.2017 N/A 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0846
consultants

RYEE KER 07.04.2017 NEA 07.04.2017 % 06.04.2027 0.1820/ 7T 0.084678 7T

Grant to employeesand ~ 07.04.2017  07.04.2017 to 06.04.2018 07.04.2018 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0920
consultants

B T2 8 REmM 07.04.2017  07.04.2017 Z 06.04.2018 07.04.2018 & 06.04.2027 0.1820i T 0.09207 7T,

SR (KB R HERAT
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30.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. URHBAEBRNRRS (&)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
The following tables disclose the movement of the share TRIFBA-T —TF v RS
options during 2020.
Outstanding Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding
at during during during at
Option type BREER 1.1.2020 year year year  31.12.2020
R-B-EF R-B-EE
—A—-H +ZRA=+-
WATE REARTE REAXY REREE BERTE
'000 '000 '000 ‘000 '000
+ T T T T
Granted to director RY&E=Z
2010 January Option “T-TE5—AiEkiE 2,130 - - (2,130) -
2011 February Option —E——F ABRE 76,902 - - - 76,902
2013 June Option —T-=FNPRERE 47 - - - 47
2015 May Option —ET-TERRERE 2,248 - - - 2,248
2017 April Option ZE—tFAERE 2,490 - - - 2,490
83,817 - - (2,130) 81,687
Exercisable at the end of 2020 AR _EFETE 81,687
Weighted average exercise price  JIEFI91THE(B 0.5848 - - 0.1690 0.5956
Granted to employees and non- RYEENIES
employees
2010 January Option-Employees ~ —F—ZTE— Bk -
EE 6,957 - - (6,957) -
2010 August Option-Employees ~ —F—Z4 )\ BBk E-
8 2,792 - - (2,792) -
2011 February Option-Employees —ZE——%= ABRKiE
B8 14,540 - - - 14,540
2013 June Option-Employees “E=FRRBRE-
E& 7,335 - - - 7,335
2015 May Option-Employees “Z-RERABEKE-
EE 20,408 - - - 20,408
2017 April Option-Employees 2+ ENAERE-
3= 37,576 - (5,915) - 31,661
2017 April Option-Non-employees = —+4 10 A it -
FEE 42,645 - - - 42,645
132,253 - (5,915) (9,749) 116,589
Exercisable at the end of 2020 R E-_EERTE 116,589
Weighted average exercise price IS TEE 0.2449 - 0.1538 0.3240 0.2386
SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 30. URMAERNSRRS @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
The following tables disclose the movement of the share TRFBBAZ—NE BIRESE)
options during 2019.
Rights issue
Outstanding adjustment  Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding
at during during during during at
Option type BRESR 1.1.2019 year year year year 31.12.2019
R-B-hE R-B-hE
—A—A RER ~ T=A=1
HATE  HRER  RERTE REAXN  RERIE -BEATHR
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 ‘000
T T T T T T
Granted to directors RTES
2010 January Option —E-F-ABkiE 1,800 330 = = = 2,130
2011 February Option “T——F - RikiE 65,000 11,902 = = — 76,902
2013 June Option “E-CERARRE 40 7 - - - 47
2015 May Option “T-AFRAEKE 1,900 348 = = = 2248
2017 April Option T EMARKE 2,105 385 = = = 2490
70,845 12,972 — — — 83,817
Exercisable at the end of 2019 A[RZE—NFETE 83,817
Weighted average exercise I FII{T(E(E
price 0.6919 0.5848 — — — 0.5848
Granted to employeesand ~ H T EE RIEES
non-employees
2010 January Option- “E-TF—ABRE-
Employees g 5,880 1,077 - - - 6,957
2010 August Option- —Z-TF )\ RERE-
Employees BB 2,360 432 - - - 2,792
2011 February Option- T ——F-ABRE-
Employess €8 12,290 2,250 - - - 14,540
2013 June Option-Employees  =Z—=4 < BB -
B8 6,200 1,135 — — — 1,385
2015 May Option-Employees —Z—hEH ARRE-
B8 17,850 3,268 — (710) — 20,408
2017 April Option-Employees = Z—+4 0 A R -
EE 34,060 6,237 — 2,721) — 37,576
2017 April Option-Non- T+ F N ARRE-
employees FEE 36,045 6,600 - - - 42,645
114,685 20,999 - (3.431) - 132283
Exercisable at the end of 2019 AJR—ZE—HEKTE 132,253
Weighted average exercise ~ IIETII(TH(E
price 0.2883 0.2437 — 0.2196 — 0.2449

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
share-based payment recognised to share options granted
to directors, employees or non-employees respectively.
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31.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. The Group contributed 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the MPF scheme, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000, which contribution
is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute 26%-28% (2019: 27% - 28%) of
payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to these schemes is
to make the specified contributions.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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RAKEREE

AEBELSMENREENSERES 28R
HUERTERE - ZETECBEERAEE
LEEDRARE  YHEXANESE
B o AN B[R 58 Bl 1 DB S FT IR Z i
R B TEKA( LR AB%30,0007T)
Z5% - e 8 2 Wk RIRER °

AEBEETE RS E ST EZMITHR
B BRERRKBATEZKE °
AEBEBHHFMRA 226% £28% (—F
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. AAQATMEBATZFHE

THE COMPANY
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the REERB AR NREAR ZFEHI
reporting period are set out below. Te
Country of Particulars of Proportion of
incorporation/ issued and fully voting power Proportion of
establishment/  paid share capital/ held by ownership interest
Name of company operations registered capital the Company for 2020 and 2019 Principal activities
HAL/HY/ BRIRARRA/ N2 A RZB-2ER-F-NF
ARER £EER AMEAzF#E REREL A BHESY IEER
2020 2019 Direct Indirect
Z22BE RN Ef A
Sing Lee Electronics (BVI)  British Virgin 715 shares of 100% 100% 100% — Investment holding
Co, Ltd. Islands US$1each
Sing Lee Electronics BVI)  ZER%ES  TI5RERAE 100% 100% 100% - RARK
Co., Ld. [E9wd)
Singles Software! PRC Registered capital 100% 100% = 100%  Development and sales of
US$4,325,500 software products, sales of
related hardware products
and provision of technical
services
g ki 4,325,500 100% 100% - 100% HEAHESFER - HE
AR BBRHER  WRERER
5%
Singlee Technology? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% = 100%  Development and sales of
US$6,714,000 software products, sales of
related hardware products
and provision of technical
services
AR hE 6,714,000£7 100% 100% - 100% HEMEERHER HE
&R EEREER DR
s
Xin YinTong? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% = 100%  Development and sales of
RMB50,000,000 software products, sales of
related hardware products
and provision of technical
services
S ki AR50,000,0007 100% 100% - 100% HEANHESFER - HE
ER BBRHER  WRERER
fiFes
1 Singlee Software is wholly foreign owned enterprise. 1 MR RRINEREE -
2 Singlee Technology and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign equity joint 2 FRRHE R RBAERBKZNPINGEE
ventures established in the PRC. BNF] o
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at AT R B A R R AN F E S AN F A
the end of the year or at any time during the year. REBITERESES -

SR (KB R HERAT
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33.

34.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. EXxEEEIE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AREFBEBEERANMBERAER 2 EE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern AIAEHERE  WiEBELLEERRKRG
while maximising the return to shareholders through the HRAEREE AT REALDR - BEFF
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s Bt NEE 2 BEREREF I -
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, AEBEARERTRAMEE ENE
amounts due to directors and bank balances and cash, FRENMBITEGEIRE NARRHEE A
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, R (AR EERA - s E « K5t
comprising share capital, share premium, accumulated B8 S EL A ) o
losses and other reserves.
The directors of the Group review the capital structure on AREBESEFEFNBTERNERE - £
a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors BREZ—HD  BE2EEEARAR
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with EEFERIEARNEE AR - NEBEERIE
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the EEvER BBIMRKRE - BITHRIA
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure REBETHESNEORAEES R FEEE
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as BEE AR o
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34. $@I A
34a. Categories of financial instruments 34a. £BTEER
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETTT
Financial assets LRHEE
Financial assets at amortised RS AT BR 2 £ &t
costs BE 91,689 152,303
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREF AR Z &R/
BE 170 181
91,859 152,484
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B EEAR N 67,764 76,385

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, financial assets
at FVTPL, bank balances and cash, amounts
due to directors, amount due to immediate
holding company, trade and other payables and
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
0 Currency risk

The Group has bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amounts due to
directors, amount due to immediate holding
company and borrowings denominated
in US$ and HK$, currencies other than
the functional currency of the respective
group entities, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. In addition, the
group has intra-group balances with
several subsidiaries denominated in foreign
currency which also expose the Group to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need to
arise.
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34. €RITA®E

34b.

TEHEREERNRBR

AEEZERMTIABREEKRES M
HMRR - Han Bt ABmZS
BMEE RUTEHKRMAS  BHE
EFE - BNERERARREA
RNEBESMEMEBERARESR -
ZECRTAZHBENEMEPR
Bo-RZSeRTANEBCRRE
EhSER(FXER - 8RR N
HibBRRER) - EERBRERBE
TR - BENEIREZ SRR
BREN T - EEEEERER
7% 5 L f AR AR A LASE S B 2
FAERABE LA

B R
() ERmE

RITEBREES  EBNES
REMBKRR - ENEEK
H - RN ERERABRA
MIEEUERTRET(ZEE
B IEMAAEEER 2R
BHFHE - AKEAANE
SMNE R o UESN - AERE B
% R 8 2 B 2 TR AE FE LA S
BEHEMREABERNG
B SAKBERBEASZINE
Rk - ANEE B A EAE
SN SRR o N1 - AN&E
BEREGERINERR
WEEE B E P ERMINE
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 34. @I A%
34b. Financial risk management objectives and 34b. SERIEMREEBEHMNRBESE)
policies (Continuea)
Market risk (Continued) R ()
i Currency risk (Continued) U] EME R (%)
The carrying amount of the foreign RN EBRUINESENE
currency denominated monetary assets MEEREBBENEREE
and monetary liabilities at the end of the mr
reporting period are as follows:
2020 2019
—E-ZF —ZT-hEF
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
&E =N BE afE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT AR¥TR AREFTT ARETET
us$ = 24 - 26 —
HK$ B IT 13,416 45,573 26,867 53,861
Sensitivity analysis BURE DT

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED

Annual Report 2020

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2019: 5%) increase and decrease
in the RMB against US$ and HKS$. The
5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in the
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive (negative) number indicates
an increase (decrease) in the post-tax (loss)/
profit where RMB strengthens against US$
and HKS$. For a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening
of RMB against US$ and HK$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be
negative.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

e MR MEE
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34. @I A%
34b. SHEKREEENRBEKR#E)

Market risk (Continued) A ()
0 Currency risk (Continued) (i) Em g )
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (48)
US$ Impact HK$ Impact
EnEE BITE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—R-RE —TNF ZT-RFE _—TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT
Profit or loss B (1) (1) 1,370 1,147
This is mainly attributable to the net I EBHRERSEHRE
exposure to outstanding foreign currency REZBETTIOE TR INE IR
bank balances and cash, trade and other THEHBRRS  ENEZR
payables, amounts due to directors, HMARR - BNESKIEA -
amount due to immediate holding company JEAT B IR A R RE K fE
and borrowings in US$ or HK$ at end of the EmmY 2 RERFEE -
reporting period.
(i) Interest rate risk management (i) FII R & 5 & 7

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate secured
loans and unsecured loans from bank,
unsecured loans from a director (see
note 26 for details) and lease liabilities.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate
bank balances (see note 22 for details).
The management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the
need to arise.

The directors consider that the cash flow
interest rate risk is insignificant, accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis were presented for
both years.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuead)

Market risk (Continueqd)
(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk through its investments in unlisted
funds. The sensitivity analyses have been
determined on the exposure to the market
price risks at the end of reporting period.
If the prices of the investments in unlisted
funds had been 5% higher or lower, the
post-tax (loss)/profit for the year ended 31
December 2020 would have increased or
decreased by approximately RMB7,000
(2019: RMB8,000) respectively as a result of
the changes in fair value on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of respective
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets. There is no significant changes in the
collateral policies of the entity during both reporting
periods.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits
and credit approvals. Before accepting any new
customer, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed
at the end of the reporting period. The Group also
adopts legal and appropriate measures to collect
overdue debts and reduce credit losses through,
amongst others, phone calls, facsimile, letters,
visits, interviews, as well as legal actions as the final
resort.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuead)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continueqd)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances
individually with significant balances and/
or on a collective basis. Except for items that
are subject to individual evaluation, which are
assessed for impairment individually, the remaining
trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed collectively based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories
for recurring customers and current past due
exposure for the new customers. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, impairment losses of
RMB4,801,000 (2019: RMB203,000) is recognised
and impairment losses of RMB215,000 (2019:
RMB923,000) has been reversed. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this
note.

The Group has concentration of credit risk of 52%
(2019: 32%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s top five largest customers
in relation to the provision of technical support
services business segment.

Other receivables and bank balances

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of IFRS 9 on other
receivables and bank balances based on 12m ECL.

The credit risk on other receivables is limited
because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly
changed for the 12 months after the reporting date.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks/financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

175

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

34. @I A%
34b. SERIEMREEBEHMNRBESE)
=B R EG )

EPENELNENEZHRARE
RIBE (#)

Hoh » AREERIBEFEEEBLE
ARE A EEHEHRNESEHES
5,/ sinEa EEETTG - BA
BEETHEMNIEE BEBFERE
I R TENE ZERRENEE
TR B ERMNERRBREH2EL
BUERPNERCEENEFEA
R EETL BHE_ZT =
TE+-_A=1+—HILFE » #R
EEEE A RE4,801,000T (=&
— N4 ARM203,0007T) 3 2 B
Bl EEB A RE215,000T (==
—hE  AR#923,0007T) - T8
WEFHBEHIWOT -

AEBEARZEEE—PSEEET
Bk - BEZE52% (—FE—F
32%) 2 JEWE SRR A AL B
ZERBEERNM  WERKE SR
KT AR R S48 RS 2 27

P -

B WA R AR THE A

ZRER B O ER A BRI R B 745 s 5 R R SR 9
518 B LA MR R MR TT AR AR AR
RRHEERAEIR12(0 A B
EERKETRERMS

A X 5 31 3 3 M B S B A RS 8k M
EERHamE AR I2(EARE
BERAB TSR EBAEL - &
EREMEUEINEERREA
fR e

RS FSHBEREEFR
BB E AR EETRORTHY
BHRE  WEBRITESRNERER
REBAR

SR () RBBRAT
e



e ISR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34. €RITA®E

34b. Financial risk management objectives and 34b. SERIEMEEBEHMRBES®)
policies (Continuea)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 B/ R BTG #E)
(Continued)
Based on the Group’s internal credit rating, no BEAEENATEETR - LE
material impairment loss allowance is recognised PLE M EBER R IR TEHRTER
for other receivables and bank balances. RNBEEERE -
The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid rEERERDES(FHREZES
funds which are deposited with several banks with EEFENIRITEEELFRER -
high credit ratings.
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment AEBNAREERBRSERTHE
comprises the following categories: FETHIEER
Trade receivables Other financial assets/
Internal credit rating Description and contract assets other items
ABEETR b EHESERRANEE HttemEE HiEs
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default  Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due not credit-impaired
amounts
EmE HYTAARENER  AYEEAE 2HBEHEEEL- REARHEEEL
iiE BEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates  Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
but usually settle in full not credit-impaired
BRrE EEAEERAMARES  EBRR  2HEHEEEKX- RERBHEERL
HHERER BEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
A5t NEBHEANANRARBLIEERR EHMEMEERA- EHENEERA-
B AR AR AR 11 BEERNE BIEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the assetis  Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BE BREENEEREERE SHRBERRR- L HEMEERL-
BiEERE BiEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
ks BREBTEBARRRENBRE - MR MisHTIE

MASEY AR BEAIREFE
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continueqd)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets and other items which

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

34. @I A%
34b. SHEKREEENRBEKR#E)

=&/ B R s E G ()

TREJIAEBAETERESER
RHENEREEREMEARNE

are subject to ECL assessment: ERRFS -
2020 2019
228 T NE
External Internal Gross Gross
credit credit carrying carrying
Notes rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount amount
i NPEEFE ABEETR 12EANHRENEESE REAE REAR
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT  ARETR
Financial assets at amortised
cost
RESRANRZERER
Bank balances 22 BA2 to AAA N/A 12-month ECL 58,157 76,170
BITHES 22 BA2ZAM TR 12AARMEERL
Other receivables 20 N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL 6,470 3,940
Hth YR 20 TER (Fit3E1) REARREERR
Trade receivables 20 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 3,746 39,675
JEUE S8 20 TER (Fir3x2) FHRHEERA(AATEE)
-contracts with customers BAto AAA N/A Lifetime ECL (external credit rating) 23,586 32,990
-KFEH) BAZAAA TER SHEBEERR(MNMEETR)
N/A Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 365 -
TEM BB SHBHESBRX(BEERE)
Other items
HibIag
Contract assets 21 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL (collective assessment) 95 1,441
BHEE 21 TEm (Ft3x2) HREBERRA(RAFEE)
BAto AAA N/A Lifetime ECL (external credit rating) 499 825

BAZAAA &R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED
Annual Report 2020

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Notes:
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management,

the Group uses past due information to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial

34. @I A%
34b. SEEKREEENRBEK#E)

=B B2 R B E 1 (%)
paz
1. RABEERRERMNE - A%EE

AEHEHNTHERRREEE AV
IRFER IR R IEIEAN ©

recognition.
Not past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
B W
A EE B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFT
Other receivables E fh FEUBR X — 6,923 6,923
2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group 2. REWESERRENEE  ~5E

has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for
debtors with external credit rating or credit-impaired
assessed individually with significant balances, the
Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items collectively, grouped by internal credit rating and
past due status of respective trade receivable and
contract assets.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group applies internal credit rating together
with past due status for its customers in relation
to its operation. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables and contract assets which
are assessed based on collective assessment
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired). Debtors
with external credit rating or credit-impaired with
gross carrying amounts of RMB23,586,000 and
RMB365,000 respectively as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB32,990,000 and nil) were assessed
individually.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

34. €RITA®E

Financial risk management objectives and 34b. SEIEMREEENRBEK@®
policies (Continuead)
Credit risk and impairment assessment =B R R E TS (%)
(Continueqd)
The estimated average loss rates are estimated HEr P EE R BB ER A TE
based on historical observed default rates over the FHRNBEBRMEELNELRIE
expected life of the debtors and forward-looking HER (A ENEBIBZ KA T 1E
information that is available without undue cost RSN NEVSRE R B T(hET ° 5%
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by SHEBEEET AR  BIREHE
management to ensure relevant information about EREEBANEAER S ER -
specific debtors is updated. The contract assets EHNEERRBAENNERKE HER
have substantially the same risk characteristics DEAEEARBMERBNERITE -
as the trade receivables for the same type of Ity NEBE AR EEMETERE
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that SERREHNEENEBLE -
the loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for contract assets.
2020 2019
—BCEE —E-NEF
Internal Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
credit rating REEERTR loss rate receivables assets loss rate  receivables assets
¥ FEW 1 e
B EBIEX AREE BRE  BHER  SHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR%TrR ARETT ARETT
Low risk ERBR 1.54% 1,997 95 0.19% 31,270 1,441
Watch list BRYE 2.9% 1,258 - 1.24% 4,346 —
Doubtful Clj=4 11.23% 491 - 3.33% 4,059 —
3,746 95 39,675 1,441

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group provided approximately RMB561,000
(2019: RMB107,000) impairment allowance for
trade receivables, and no impairment allowance
for contract assets, based on the collective
assessment.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 34. @I A%
34b. Financial risk management objectives and 34b. SERIEMREEBEHMNRBESE)
policies (Continuea)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 B/ R BTG #E)
(Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime TRINTBEGEERERE S K
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables REREHEECHERANZ ARG
and contract assets under the simplified approach. B8R Es) -
Lifetime Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL ECL
(external (collective (credit-
credit rating) assessment)  impaired) Total
2 HTEHE ZHATEH
BFEEX ZHITEHA BFERX
(HIEE BEEX (B8
) (HERMEE) WiE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT ARETT AREBTET
As at 1 January 2019 R=-T—h&E—HF—H 130 240 827 1,197
— Impairment losses ~ — B HERREEE
recognised 96 107 — 203
— Impairment losses ~ — 2 & ER{EEE
reversed — (96) (827) (923)
As at 31 December R=-ZT—hfF
2019 +=BA=+—H 226 251 — 477
— Impairment losses ~ — B HERRERE
recognised 1,849 2,572 380 4,801
— Impairment losses ~ — 2 EIFEEE
reversed (101) (114) - (2195)
— Transfer to credit- —EREZERIE
impaired (1,716) 2,011) 3,727 -
— Write-offs —JEH — — (3,727) (3,727)
— Reclassified to —EF DB AIFIER
assets held for sale EEE (90) (399) — (489)
As at 31 December R-ZT-ZTHF
2020 +=A=+—H 168 299 380 847
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead)

34b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continueqd)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over three years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
None of the trade receivables that have been
written off is subject to enforcement activities.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalent as well as undrawn banking facilities
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects

of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from weighted average interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.
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34b.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuead) 34. €@MTHE®)

34b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuea)

34b. SEEKREEENRBEK#E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) TEELELE)
Liquidity risk table B E TR
Weighted Ondemand Between  Between More Total
average orless oneand twoand thanfive undiscounted Carrying
interest rate than1year twoyears five years years  cashflows  amount
nE  REXS FERRS
THRE -ERBE -ZRE -ERf  BENE HEAH REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AREFT ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT
2020 ot - 33
Trade and other payables ENESREMER - 3,316 - - - 3,316 3,316
Amounts due to directors EES - 648 - - - 648 648
Amount due to immediate BRERERAFHE
holding company - 11 - - - il 11
Unsecured loans from a director  EEHESEE 2.83% 1,719 10,724 1,501 42,287 56,231 44,789
Bank borrowings BITRE 43%  198% - - - 19,825 19,000
Lease liabities HEaR 6.00% 439 16 - - 455 454
25,958 10,740 1,501 42,287 80,486 68,218
2019 —E-NE
Trade and other payables ENE 5 REMER - 7,119 - - - 7,119 7,119
Amounts due to directors ENEZE - 783 - - - 783 783
Amount due to immediate R ERERATZE
holding company - 12 - - - 12 12
Unsecured loans from a director  EEAEZEE 2.91% 1,217 8,438 16,040 45,985 71,740 57,471
Bank borrowings RS 4.80% 11,528 - - - 11,528 11,000
Lease liabities HEaR 6.00% 459 - - - 459 459
21,178 8,438 16,040 45,985 91,641 76,844
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd)
34c. Fair value
(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial

assets and financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used) as well as the

e MR MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

34. €RITA®E

34c.

[RE

() FEHzEZERTHERE
ZRAABEIIRELEMEE
B EE

AEBERNEREER SR
BEDERERSHROD
R{EFE - TREHRBBEZ
ETHMEEAAREBENETES
KOCE =M ABMAET AR
AR A RIS BT B
ABEBA TEENREEN D
BAREHENDAERER

level of the fair value hierarchy into which (B1E3B )HEE -

the fair value measurements are categorised

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which

the inputs to the fair value measurements is

observable.

Fair value as at
RUTBENARE
Valuation
31 December 31 December ~ Fair value technique and
2020 2019  hierarchy key inputs
-t 23 eyl HEHER
t=A=t-B +ZA=t-H 2AEE& BREAHE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TR ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through profit 170 181 Level3 Redemption values quoted by the
orloss (Note 19) relevant investment funds with

reference to the underlying assets
of the funds.

BRAABNBEZ SRBEHH19) 170 181 #3E ABRERSREES ZHHEE
FRmERERE -
I AT
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueqd) 34. €T A=)
34c. Fair value (Continued) 34c. ARE#®E)

(i Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) rEFTHEERTHER
assets and financial liabilities that are ZAREIRBEEMEEE
measured at fair value on a recurring HEAREE®)
basis (Continueqd)

Reconciliation of level 3 fair value FEIERAREFTE R -
measurements:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BRAMBEFABEZSREE
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Opening balance BRW)e85E 181 237
Fair value loss in profit or loss 182 HI AR EEE - (59)
Exchange difference BE H =R (11) 3
Closing balance HR &R 170 181
There were no transfers in and out from MEFENEIETEE AR
level 3 in both years. HEH o

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial (i) FEEHBEERLHBEE
assets and financial liabilities that ZARETURELZEME
are not measured at fair value on BEAARBETE(BEEREE
a recurring basis (but fair value HA%HE)

disclosures are required)

The fair values of the financial assets and
financial liabilities have been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised at amortised cost
in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 35. mEIZHELEMNEENYHEE
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRAFMAEFBRERETHNAEGEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash B AERERIIRSED HEIZHE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing ERBEARESREMB  HAKRER
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future EREAREGEReRERTOERA
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated BEENIRESRE °
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount
due to
Unsecured  Amounts immediate
Bank Lease loans from due to holding
borrowings liabilites  adirector  directors  company Total
BER Eff EMEHE
#7EE HEBE EIRE EIHE RAFRNE CH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT AR%T:
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 26) (Note 25) (Note 28)
(Wi#26)  (Wier)  (Bat2e)  (Wat2s)  (Wi##28)
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—A—A 11,000 344 66,435 536 12 78,327
Financing cash flows BERENE (563) (1,188) (11,065) 246 - (12,570)
Foreign exchange translation  §ME i 18 - - 329 1 - 330
Interest expense FBXI 563 25 1,772 = = 2,360
Lease modified HEBT - 1,278 = = = 1,078
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1—H 11,000 459 57,471 783 12 69,725
Financing cash flows BERSNE 7,362 (1,389) (10,682) (121) - (4,824)
New lease entered e - 1,348 - - - 1,348
Foreign exchange translation  §1\& i # - - (3,558) (14) (1) (3,573)
Interest expense FEL 638 30 1,558 - - 2,226
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=+—H 19,000 454 44,789 648 11 64,902
I AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from details of the balances with related parties
disclosed in notes 8, 25, 26 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

36.

BELTRS

bR TR A MR MG RO8 - 25 - 26/%28
ERERE S AER IR - ARBRFERETTN
THRESTRS

FEEEEASHS

REBEERFTEEBREBZKEZHEM
I

2020 2019
—B-RF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETTT
Short-term employee benefits ySEEL=FER 4,614 4,860
Retirement benefit schemes RIREFFT B
contributions 279 279
4,893 5,139
Short-term lease expenses EHESEX
2020 2019
bt 222 —ZE-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Short-term lease expenses paid to 37 1~ 57 7|28 B3¢ £ O B R A &) HY
Sing Lee Pharmaceutical Import MAEEBEAEEASHY
& Export Co., Limited for lease of
office premises 559 565

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had commitments
of approximately RMB280,000 (2019: RMB278,000) for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for the next year in respect of office
premises leasing with a related company, Sing Lee
Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., Limited, which the
director, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, has 50% equity interest with
joint control.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 &%= —FE —FE#+ = =+—HIFEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. A& TBERRE
OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—ECEH —ZT—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET AREFIT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries LEH BT 3,131 3,131
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGBl 21,986 23,448
25,117 26,579
Current Assets FREBEE
Prepayments and other receivables 81 3% 18 [ H i & U BR 3¢ 1,567 318
Financial assets at fair value BAREABEZEREE
through profit or loss 170 181
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRIIRE 13,228 26,665
14,965 27,164
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables E R SR 1,000 959
Amounts due to directors e EERIE 648 669
Amount due to immediate holding B~ B 32AX A 712UE
company 1 12
Borrowings BE 1,625 1,243
3,284 2,883
Net Current Asset REEETFE 11,681 24,281
Total Assets less Current BEERRBER
Liabilities 36,798 50,860
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Share capital (Note 29) A& A (B 5E29) 12,538 12,538
Reserves (Note) R () (17,969) (12,592)
Total Equity R (5,431) (54)
Non-current Liability kRBEE
Borrowings Fopl=i 42,229 50,914
36,798 50,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ## —F —F#+ - H=+—HIF F/&

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. AATHM#ERRTE)

38.

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: Hifat -
Share-based
Share Shareholder’s payments  Accumulated
premium contribution reserve losses Total
LURB B
RDRE BRMR  ERCSREE Rit#sE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETT AREFTT ARETTT ARETT
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-NE—A—H 161,445 786 33,688 (219,998) (24,079)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  AN4EEE1E R 2 ER X
for the year k) = - - (6,200) (6,200)
Shares issued BT 19,387 — — — 19,387
Transaction costs attrioutable To BEITRO R BEA
shares issued (1,700) — - — (1,700)
Lapse of share options R FERRE = = (294) 204 =
At 31 December 2019 WoE-NE+-A=1+—RH 179,132 786 33,394 (225,904) (12,592)
Loss and total comprehensive expense A EE1E &2
for the year k) - - - (5,377) (5,377)
Lapse of share options KRB R - - (2,403) 2,403 —
At 31 December 2020 REIZZZF+-A=1+—H 179,132 786 30,991 (228,878) (17,969)
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 38. HZ&EHIBEE

PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, Singlee Technology,
proposed to enter into the equity transfer agreement
among Singlee Technology, Hangzhou Hengxin Lirong
Software Company Limited (“Hangzhou HL”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company established
on 20 January 2021, and an independent third party,
pursuant to which the Singlee Technology would sell and
the independent third party would purchase 100% of the
issued share capital of Hangzhou HL. Upon completion,
Hangzhou HL will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company
and the financial results of Hangzhou HL will no longer be
consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company. Details of the disposal are set out in the
Group's announcement dated 12 March 2021.
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